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Chairman’s Letter

TO SHAREHOLDERS
Dear Shareholders,
The uncertainty of the preceding year continued into the financial year 31 January 2006. Oil prices remained high and commodity
prices continued its upward climb. As inflation crept into the economy, many sectors showed nominal growth fueled by nominal
salary increases and increased household indebtedness.
With rapid growth in the new Asian economies especially that of China and India, it is becoming clear that the degradation of the world
environment, especially its water resources, will continue to worsen. The management of Goldis Berhad will continue to focus its
resources in the water and sewage treatment area.
For the financial year under review, we had to make a painful decision to take a loss on our investment in Ecosem Sdn Bhd as we
found the semiconductor industry to be highly competitive in pricing and very fast in technological changes.

FINANCIAL RESUL
TS
RESULTS
For the financial year under review, Group revenue increased from RM157.5 million to RM183.0 million, an increase of 16% from the
preceding year. Group pre-tax profit decreased from RM59.6 million to RM46.2 million, a decrease of 22% from the preceding year.
Last year’s results had included exceptional gains of RM9.0 million of which RM3.9 million was from the disposal of its business asset
in Sweat Club at Mid Valley Megamall and RM5.1 million was from the disposal of IGB Corporation Bhd warrants. If these exceptional
gains had been excluded, Group pre-tax profit would have only decreased by 9% mainly attributable to impairment losses on the
assets of Ecosem Sdn Bhd and lower contribution from HOEPharma Holdings Sdn Bhd (formerly known as Diversified Healthcare
Services Sdn Bhd).

PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF OUR INVESTMENTS
IGB Corporation Berhad (“IGB”) (a listed real estate conglomerate)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2005, IGB Group’s revenue was RM619.7 million, an increase of 23% from RM504.6 million
the year before. Pre-tax profit also increased by 22% to RM173.3 million from RM141.7 million the year before.
In April 2006, we have placed out 9.3 million shares of KrisAssets Holdings Berhad (“KrisAssets”) for RM25.2 million to facilitate the
resumption of the trading of KrisAssets shares. The balance of the KrisAssets shares will also be placed out to comply with the
public spread requirement of 25%.

PRIV
ATE EQUITY INVESTMENTS IN MALA
YSIA
PRIVA
MALAYSIA
The total investment in private companies in Malaysia as at 31 January 2006 was RM40.3 million compared to RM43.7 million last year.
The decrease was due to the repayment of advances from subsidiaries during the financial year.
A review of the performance of our main investment companies in Malaysia is as follows:
HOEPharma Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HOE”) (a dermatological and healthcare company)
HOE Group’s revenue dropped 11% to RM73.4 million from RM82.6 million in the preceding year. Pre-tax profit dropped 80% to RM1.7
million from RM8.7 million in the preceding year. The significant drop in pre-tax profit was due to the high advertising and promotion
cost incurred for gaining a foothold in new markets during the financial year. We are confident that these new markets and new
products will contribute to the revenue and profits in the coming years.
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TO SHAREHOLDERS (cont’d)
Macro Kiosk Berhad (“MKB”) (a mobile data communications technology provider)
MKB Group’s revenue increased from RM24.4 million to RM38.1 million, an increase of 56% from the preceding year. Pre-tax profit
dropped 17% to RM1.9 million from RM2.3 million the year before. The drop in pre-tax profit was due to higher pre-operating expenses
incurred for its new investments entered during the financial year. Operations have been set up in Thailand, Singapore, China, Hong
Kong, Indonesia and Brunei.
The Securities Commission had rejected MKB’s application for listing on the MESDAQ. All listing expenses had been written off during
the financial year.
Macro Lynx Sdn Bhd (a broadband solutions and service provider)
With the disposal of its broadband infrastructure and MidValley.com website to KrisAssets for RM1.2 million during the financial year,
the pre-tax profit increased to RM0.3 million from a loss of RM0.7 million last year.
Ecosem Sdn Bhd (“Ecosem”) (a semiconductor assembly
ackaging and testing comp
any)
assembly,, p
packaging
company)
For the financial year under review, Ecosem ceased its operations as it was not able to secure sufficient projects to operate as a
viable entity.
During the year, Goldis Berhad has accepted and exercised the Call Option granted by Ecosem Technologies Sdn Bhd to purchase
24 million shares representing 60% of the issued and paid up capital of Ecosem for RM2 resulting in Ecosem becoming a whollyowned subsidiary of Goldis Berhad. The Company was placed under receivership by Southern Bank Berhad who had on 28
November 2005 appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Receiver and Manager. On 14 March 2006, the receivership was uplifted
following the settlement of a debt amounting to RM5.4 million to Southern Bank Berhad.
On 17 April 2006, Ecosem was granted a Restraining Order by the High Court of Malaya at Kuala Lumpur pursuant to Section 176 of
the Companies Act, 1965 for a period of 90 days.

PRIV
ATE EQUITY INVESTMENTS IN CHINA
PRIVA
The total amount invested in companies in China as at 31 January 2006 was RM74.1 million compared to RM59.2 million in the
preceding year. The increase reflects the plough-back in profits from our Tianjin Manax Natural Fibre Thin Film Co. Ltd (“Tianjin
Manax”) investment as well as our investments in the sewage treatment projects in China.
Revenue for the China group was RM68.5 million, an increase of 57% from RM43.7 million in the preceding year. Pre-tax profit
increased to RM10.5 million from RM5.4 million in the preceding year, due mainly to the higher contribution from Tianjin Manax, a paper
manufacturing company.
Gold Water (Shanghai) Co Ltd, a water and sewage treatment company made a loss of RM1.4 million during the financial year. The
company had signed two build, operate and transfer (“BOT”) concession agreements over 20 years in JiangSu and GanYu province.
The GanYu project should be operational by this year.

NEW PRIV
ATE EQUITY INVESTMENTS
PRIVA
The management of Goldis Berhad in line with the Malaysian Government focus on the commercial agriculture sector has made an
investment in Protech Yu (Asia) Sdn Bhd. This company will focus on a land based aquaculture system that guarantees pathogen
free and heavy metal free seafood. A corollary of the pollution of the world’s water supply is the questionable quality of our fish
supplies. Protech Yu will be looking at the best methods to produce the best quality fish protein with minimal degradation of the
environment.
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TO SHAREHOLDERS (cont’d)
PROPERTY INVESTMENT
Goldis Tower Sdn Bhd (formerly known as LA Residence Sdn Bhd)
We have submitted our building plan to Dewan Bandaraya Kuala Lumpur and will proceed to develop a mixed use commercial
development of approximately 1.2 million sq ft. We have received indications of interest from strategic investors to participate in this
landmark project.

AW
ARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
AWARDS
MKB was awarded the 2005 Deloitte Technology Fast 500 Asia Pacific Award, whereby MKB was ranked the 25th fastest growing
technology company in Asia Pacific and the 5th in Malaysia and also the Best New Service at the Best @ Show Award, during the
Asean Communications and Multimedia Expo (ACM) 2005, Malaysia’s biggest ICT event.
IGB’s Megamall won the MAXI Merit Award 2005, an international award in recognition of excellence in Marketing Programs - a first
for a Malaysian mall and also the Gold Award for the Retail World Excellence Awards 2006/2007.

OUR PEOPLE
For the financial year under review, the number of employees for the Group has increased to 895 from 828 last year. Every year we
participate in a scholarship programme organized by Dato’ Tan Chin Nam Foundation to assist needy students in Malaysia.

DIVIDEND
I am pleased to announce that the Board of Directors has recommended a first and final gross dividend in respect of the financial year
ended 31 January 2006 of 1.5 sen per share less tax of 28% and 1.0 sen per share tax exempt amounting to RM6.7 million.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIA
TION
APPRECIATION
I would like to express my sincere thanks and appreciation to the management and staffs for their hard work, support and dedication
to the Group during the financial year, and to the relevant authorities for their support, cooperation and guidance. To our shareholders,
business partners, customers and financiers, I thank you for the continuing support and confidence. Last but not least, I wish to
record my thanks to my fellow Directors for their advice and support.

TAN LEI CHENG (MS)
Chairman & CEO
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Notice Of The Sixth Annual

GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Sixth Annual General Meeting of Goldis Berhad (formerly known as
Gold IS Berhad) will be held at Seri Angsana, 2nd Floor, Sidewalk Cafe, MiCasa All Suite Hotel, 368B,
Jalan 1/68F, Off Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur on Thursday, 29 June 2006 at 2.00 p.m. for the
following purposes:1.

To receive the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2006 together with the
Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

Ordinary Resolution 1

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM95,000.

Ordinary Resolution 2

3.

To declare a first and final dividend of 1.5% less income tax of 28% and 1% tax exempt for the year
ended 31 January 2006.

Ordinary Resolution 3

4.

5.

To re-elect the following Directors who retire in accordance with Article 98 of the Articles of
Association of the Company:
(a) Mr Tan Kim Leong
(b) Encik Daud Mah Bin Abdullah

Ordinary Resolution 4
Ordinary Resolution 5

To re-appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix
their remuneration.

Ordinary Resolution 6

As Special Business
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:
6.

Authority for Directors to Issue Shares
That, subject to the Companies Act, 1965 and the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors be and are hereby authorised, pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, to
allot and issue shares in the Company at any time until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their
absolute discretion deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued does not
exceed ten per centum (10%) of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company for the time
being and that the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing and
quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

7.

Ordinary Resolution 7

Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase its Own Shares
That subject to the provisions under the Companies Act, 1965 (“Act”), the Companies Regulations
1966, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Listing Requirements of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and the approvals of all relevant authorities
(if any), the Company be and is hereby authorised, to the extent permitted by law, to purchase and/
or hold such number of its own ordinary shares of RM1.00 each (“Goldis Shares”) as may be
determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon such
terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest of the Company
provided that the aggregate number of shares purchased pursuant to this resolution shall not
exceed ten per centum (10%) of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at the
time of purchase;
That the maximum amount of funds to be utilised for the purpose of the Proposed Share Buy-Back
shall not exceed the Company’s aggregate retained profits and/or share premium account;
That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to decide at their discretion,
as may be permitted and prescribed by the Act and/or any prevailing laws, rules, regulations,
orders, guidelines and requirements issued by the relevant authorities for the time being in force to
deal with any Goldis Shares so purchased by the Company in the following manner:
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GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)
(a) to cancel the Goldis Shares so purchased; or
(b) to retain the Goldis Shares so purchased as treasury shares for distribution as dividends to the
shareholders of the Company and/or re-sell through Bursa Securities in accordance with the
relevant rules of Bursa Securities and/or cancel the Goldis Shares so purchased subsequently; or
(c) to retain part of the Goldis Shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel the remainder.
That the authority conferred by this resolution will be effective immediately from the passing of this
ordinary resolution until:
(a) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company following the Annual
General Meeting at which this resolution is passed, at which time the authority would lapse unless
renewed by an ordinary resolution, either unconditionally or conditionally; or
(b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company after that date is required
by law to be held; or
(c) the authority is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company in a general meeting,
whichever occurs first;
And that the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take such steps to give full
effect to the Proposed Share Buy-Back with full power to assent to any conditions, modifications,
variations and/or amendments as may be imposed by the relevant authorities and/or to do all such acts
and things as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the best interest of the Company.

Ordinary Resolution 8

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Special Resolutions:
8.

Proposed Amendment to the Articles of Association
That the Articles of Association of the Company be amended by incorporating a new Article to be
labelled as Article 119A after the existing Article 119 therein contained:Without limiting the discretion of the directors to regulate their meeting under Article 119, the directors
may, if they think fit, confer by radio, telephone, closed circuit television or other electronic means of
audio or audio visual communication. A resolution passed by such a conference shall, despite the fact
that the directors are not present together in one place at the time of the conference, be deemed to
have been passed at the meeting of the directors held on the day on which and at the time at which the
conference was held. The provisions of these Articles relating to proceedings of directors apply to
such conferences so far as they are capable of application and with any necessary changes.

9.

Special Resolution 1

Proposed Amendment to the Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association
That Clause 3, Object Clause in the Memorandum of Association be and is hereby amended in the
following manner:The following new sub-clause (1A) be inserted immediately after sub-clause (1):(1A)

10

To invest in companies, businesses, enterprises and ventures through corporate joint ventures,
corporate partnerships, equity participation or otherwise and to participate and/or take proactive
role in the growth, expansion, management, operation and other areas of such companies,
businesses, enterprises or ventures by providing expertise, skills, experience, networking,
financial, strategic and mentoring advice and assistance to such companies, businesses,
enterprises and ventures.

10. To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given.
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GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)
NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT & P
AYMENT
PA
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT a first and final dividend of 1.5% less income tax of 28% and 1% tax exempt in respect of the
financial year ended 31 January 2006, if approved by shareholders, will be paid on 27 July 2006 to shareholders whose names
appear in the Record of Depositors of the Company at the close of business on 4 July 2006.
A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the dividend only in respect of :
a.

shares transferred into the depositor’s securities account before 4.00 p.m. on 4 July 2006 in respect of transfers.

b.

shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the Rules of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad.

By Order of the Board
Chow Lai Ping
(MAICSA 0829388)
Leong Kok Chi
(MICPA 2918)
Company Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
7 June 2006

Notes
Notes:

1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy, who need not be a member, to vote in his stead and
the provision of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

2.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorized in writing
or if the appointer is a corporation, either under its common seal or under the hand of a duly authorized officer or attorney.

3.

The Proxy Form shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, Penthouse, Menara Tan & Tan, 207 Jalan Tun
Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.
Explanatory Notes on Special Business

1.

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 7, if passed, will empower the Directors to issue shares in the Company up to an amount not
exceeding in total ten per centum (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being, for such purposes as the
Directors consider would be in the interest of the Company in order to avoid any delay and costs involved in convening a general
meeting to approve such an issue of shares. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

2.

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will renew the shareholders’ mandate for the share buy-back by the company
and will empower the Company to purchase and/or hold up to ten percentum (10%) of the issued and paid-up share capital of
the Company. This authority will, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a General Meeting, expire at the next Annual
General Meeting. For further information on the Proposed Share Buy-Back, please refer to the Share Buy-Statement dated 7
June 2006 accompanying the Notice of Annual General Meeting.

3.

The proposed Special Resolution 1, if passed, will allow members of the Board of Directors of the Company to participate in any
meeting of the Directors by way of teleconferencing through a conference telephone or other similar electronic telecommunication
equipment.

4.

The proposed Special Resolution 2, if passed, will better reflect one of the principal activities of the Company which is in private
equity investment.
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Statement Accompanying Notice Of

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
1.

The Directors who are standing for re-election, pursuant to Article 98 of the Articles of Association are:
Shareholdings in the Company
as at 31.01.2006
%
Indirect

Date of
Appointment

Direct

Mr Tan Kim Leong

11.01.2002

-

-

-

-

Encik Daud Mah Bin Abdullah

15.01.2003

-

-

-

-

Name of Directors

%

Further details on the Directors standing for re-election at the Sixth Annual General Meeting are set out on pages 17 to 18 of this
Annual Report.

2.

There were 4 board meetings held during the financial year.
Attendance of the Directors standing for re-election at the Sixth Annual General Meeting are as follows:
No. of meetings
attended

29.03.05

22.06.05

27.09.05

02.12.05

Mr Tan Kim Leong

3/4

9

9

9

X

Encik Daud Mah Bin Abdullah

4/4

9

9

9

9

Name of Directors

Details of the attendance of the other directors are set out on page 19 of this Annual Report.

3.

Sixth Annual General Meeting of Goldis Berhad:
Date

: Thursday, 29 June 2006

Time

: 2.00 p.m.

Venue : Seri Angsana, 2nd Floor
Sidewalk Cafe, MiCasa All Suite Hotel
368B, Jalan 1/68F
Off Jalan Tun Razak
50400 Kuala Lumpur
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
Income Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 January

2006
RM'000

2005
RM'000

2004
RM'000

Revenue

183,028

157,503

105,975

Profit from operations
Share of results of jointly controlled entities
Share of results of associates

4,315
(5,076)
46,987

16,379
3,487
39,687

16,149
2,099
63,183

Profit from ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation

46,226
(10,819)

59,553
(11,311)

81,431
(18,293)

Profit from ordinary activities after taxation
Minority interest

35,407
(2,776)

48,242
(3,794)

63,138
(2,208)

Net profit for the financial year

32,631

44,448

60,930

2006
RM'000

2005
RM'000

2004
RM'000

113,697
741,386
68,047
1,908
1,741

89,232
720,468
80,351
1,905
1,477

89,709
652,657
76,881
1,643
232

926,779

893,433

821,122

202,068
(228,852)

135,691
(149,750)

94,934
(88,897)

(26,784)

(14,059)

6,037

(9,243)

(22,350)

(14,942)

890,752

857,024

812,217

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

320,943
551,513

320,633
520,572

320,633
481,294

Shareholders' equity
Minority interest

872,456
18,296

841,205
15,819

801,927
10,290

890,752

857,024

812,217

Financial ratios as at 31 January

2006

2005

2004

Basic earnings per share (sen)
Diluted earnings per share (sen)
Dividends per ordinary share (sen)
Net assets per share (RM)

10.18
10.16
2.5
2.8

13.86
13.86
2.5
2.7

19.00
18.99
2.0
2.5

Balance Sheets
As at 31 January

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Associates
Jointly controlled entities
Unquoted investments, at cost
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Less: Current liabilities
Net current assets / (liabilities)
Less: Non-current liabilities
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS (cont’d)
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Profile of

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TAN LEI CHENG
(Non-Independent Executive Chairman
& Chief Executive Officer)
Tan Lei Cheng, aged 49, a Malaysian, was appointed a director
of Goldis Berhad (“Company”) on 20 September 2000. Ms Tan
was appointed Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”) of the Company on 6 May 2002. She was the CEO of
Tan & Tan Developments Berhad (“Tan & Tan”) a property
development company, from March 1995 to August 2003. Tan &
Tan is a public company listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad until Goldis Berhad took over its listing on 8 May 2002,
following the completion of the merger between the Company,
Tan & Tan and IGB Corporation Berhad. She is the prime mover
in identifying and developing projects that are in the growth
industries sector. She has 26 years of experience in the property
industry and the corporate sector. She holds a Bachelor of
Commerce from the University of Melbourne, Australia, and a
Bachelor of Law from King's College, London (LLB Hons.). She
is also a member of Lincoln's Inn and was admitted to the English
Bar in 1983. She is a member of the Young President's
Organisation, Malaysia Chapter (“YPO”). YPO is a premier
international network of young business leaders that is dedicated
to the continuing education of its members. She is a director of
IGB Corporation Berhad, KrisAssets Holdings Berhad, Macro
Kiosk Berhad and Dato’ Tan Chin Nam Foundation.

He has no conflict of interest with the Company and has no
conviction for offences within the past 10 years. He is not
related to any members of the board nor major shareholders.

PAULINE TAN SUA
T MING
SUAT
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)
Pauline Tan Suat Ming, aged 60, a Malaysian, was appointed a
director of the Company on 7 January 2002. Ms Tan holds a
Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Biochemistry from University
of Sussex, England and is also a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She worked as a
chemist in Malayan Sugar Manufacturing Co Berhad from 1969
to 1972. She joined Tan Kim Yeow Sdn Bhd as an Executive
Director in 1976 and joined Wah Seong Group of Companies in
1983. She is a director of Wah Seong Corporation Berhad, IGB
Corporation Berhad and Yayasan Wah Seong.
Ms Tan is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. She is a cousin of Tan
Lei Cheng and Tan Boon Lee and is a major shareholder. She is
a sister of Tony Tan @ Choon Keat and Robert Tan Chung Meng
who are major shareholders.
She has no conflict of interest with the Company and has no
conviction for offences within the past 10 years.

She is a member of the Remuneration, Nomination and ESOS
Committees.

TAN BOON LEE
She is a sister of Tan Boon Lee and a daughter of Dato’ Tan Chin
Nam, who is a major shareholder of Goldis Berhad. She is a
cousin of Pauline Tan Suat Ming, Robert Tan Chung Meng and
Tony Tan @ Choon Keat, who are major shareholders.
She has no conflict of interest with the Company and has no
conviction for offences within the past 10 years.

TAN KIM LEONG@ TAN CHONG MIN, J.P
J.P..
(Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)
Tan Kim Leong @ Tan Chong Min, aged 66, a Malaysian, was
appointed to the Board of the Company on 11 January 2002. Mr
Tan is the Executive Chairman of BDO Binder. He is a successful
chartered accountant with 41 years of experience. He holds
professional memberships in the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants and the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants, Australia and the Malaysian Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)
Tan Boon Lee, aged 42, a Malaysian, was appointed a director
of the Company on 11 January 2002. Mr Tan holds a Bachelor of
Economics from Monash University, Australia and a Masters in
Business Administration from Cranfield School of Management,
United Kingdom. He has 20 years of experience in the property
and hotel industry, giving management and technical assistance
to hotel and hospitality projects in Malaysia and Asia. He is a
director of IGB Corporation Berhad, KrisAssets Holdings Berhad,
Macro Kiosk Berhad and Dato’ Tan Chin Nam Foundation.
He is a member of the Audit, Nomination, Remuneration and
ESOS Committees.
He is a brother of Tan Lei Cheng and a son of Dato’ Tan Chin
Nam, who is a major shareholder of Goldis Berhad. He is a
cousin of Pauline Tan Suat Ming, Robert Tan Chung Meng and
Tony Tan @ Choon Keat, who are major shareholders.
He has no conflict of interest with the Company and has no
conviction for offences within the past 10 years.

Other directorships in public companies include Amoy Canning
Corporation (Malaya) Berhad and KL Industrial Services Berhad.
He is the Senior Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration and ESOS
Committees.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)
DAUD MAH BIN ABDULLAH @ MAH SIEW WHYE

HARUN BIN HASHIM MOHD

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

Daud Mah Bin Abdullah @ Mah Siew Whye, aged 44, a Malaysian,
was appointed a director of the Company on 15 January 2003.
He holds a Bachelor of Science (Econs.) degree from the London
School of Economics and Political Science and a Masters in
Business Administration majoring in Finance from Wharton
School, University of Pennsylvania. He is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales, and of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Harun Bin Hashim Mohd, aged 56, a Malaysian, was appointed
to the Board of the Company on 14 December 2004 and is a
representative of Permodalan Nasional Berhad.

His working experience commenced with auditing various
businesses, focusing on financial services while with Coopers
& Lybrand, London from 1984-1989. After completing his Masters
in Business Administration in 1992, he returned to Malaysia to
join The Boston Consulting Group, where he was the consultant
to companies in the oil & gas, pharmaceutical, food and airlines
industries. He left The Boston Consulting Group in 1995 and set
up a boutique fund management company called Kumpulan
Sentiasa Cemerlang Sdn Bhd. He is presently the CEO of KSC
Capital Berhad, a unit trust management company, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Kumpulan Sentiasa Cemerlang Sdn
Bhd.

He started off his career with the Ministry of Agriculture in 1972
for two years. Thereafter he joined the Economics Planning Unit
of the Prime Minister’s Department in 1974, whereby he held
various senior positions in several divisions and sections. He
left the Department in 1993 to join Perbadanan Usahawan Nasional
Berhad where he held the position of General Manager of the
Human Resource and Entrepreneur Development Division for
two years. He is currently the Executive Director of Gunung
Kabel Sdn Bhd. Other directorships in public companies include
IGB Corporation Berhad.

He is a member of the Audit and Nomination Committees and the
Chairman of the Remuneration and ESOS Committees.
He has no conflict of interest with the Company and has no
conviction for offences within the past 10 years. He is not
related to any members of the board nor major shareholders.
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He holds a Master of Arts in Public Policy and Administration
(Economics) from the University of Wisconsin, United States of
America and a Bachelor of Arts (Economics) from the University
of Malaya.

Other than as disclosed, he has no conflict of interest with the
Company and he has no conviction for offences within the past
10 years. He is not related to any members of the board or major
shareholders.

Statement Of Corporate

GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors recognizes the significance of maintaining good corporate governance and has continued to exercise the
highest standards of corporate governance in all aspects of its business dealings with integrity and transparency.
The following paragraph describes how the Group has applied the Principles of Corporate Governance and the extent of compliance
with the best practices of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”).
The Board
(i)

Board Balance
The Board currently consists of six (6) members comprising one (1) Executive Director and five (5) Non-Executive Directors of
whom two (2) are Independent Directors representing one third of the Board. The Directors with their sharp business acumen
coupled with their different backgrounds and specialisations, collectively bring with them a wide range of experience and
expertise to lead and control the Group effectively. A brief profile of each Director is presented in the Profile of the Board of
Directors.
Due to the size and the business nature of the Company, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
of the Company are held by the same person. The CEO develops the corporate objectives, which is then subsequently tabled
and approved by the Board. The function of the Chairman that is currently held by the CEO is to ensure the orderly conduct and
working of the Board, the management of the business and the implementation of such policies and strategies as approved by
the Board. The Board has the overall responsibility for corporate governance, strategic direction and overseeing the investment
and business of the Group.
The Board has appointed Mr Tan Kim Leong as the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director to whom any concerns pertaining
to the Group may be conveyed.
The presence of Independent Non-Executive Directors in the Board provides objectivity and they have the necessary skill and
experience to bring an independent judgement to bear on the issues of strategy, performance, resources including key
appointments and standards of conduct. They are independent of management and the major shareholders. They provide
independent views and judgement and also safeguard the interests of parties such as the minority shareholders.
The Board has reserved for itself powers in respect of significant areas in the Group’s business including major investment
decisions, approval of corporate plans and acquisition and disposal of business segments.

(ii) Board Meetings and Supply of Information
The Board meets every quarter and additional meetings are convened as necessary. The meetings are held on a scheduled
basis that is determined in advance. The agenda together with the Board papers for each meeting are circulated in advance of
the meeting to the Board members.
During the financial year under review, the Board met four times and the attendance record for each Director is as follows:Name of Director
Ms Tan Lei Cheng
Mr Tan Kim Leong
Encik Daud Mah Bin Abdullah
Ms Pauline Tan Suat Ming
Mr Tan Boon Lee
Encik Harun Bin Hashim Mohd

Tot
al Meetings Attended
otal

Percentage of Attendance (%)

4/4
3/4
4/4
3/4
3/4
4/4

100
75
100
75
75
100

The Board is supplied with all necessary information to enable it to effectively discharge its responsibilities. Any additional
information requested by the Directors is promptly provided.
Procedures are in place for Directors, in discharging their duties, to seek independent professional advice where necessary at
the Company's expense in order to fulfil their duties and specific responsibilities. In addition, all Directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretaries.
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GOVERNANCE (cont’d)
(iii) Appointment and Re-election of Directors
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors retire from office at least once in every three years and
offer themselves for re-election.
(iv) Directors’ Remuneration
(a) Remuneration Procedure
The Remuneration Committee proposes to the Board the remuneration of the Executive Director in all its forms, drawing from
outside advice where necessary. However, the determination of remuneration packages of all Directors is a matter of the
Board as a whole. The Directors do not participate in the discussion and decision of their own remuneration.
The Non-Executive Directors are paid annual fees which are approved annually by the shareholders. The Directors are
also reimbursed reasonable expenses incurred by them in the course of carrying out their duties on behalf of the Company.
(b) Remuneration Package
Aggregate remuneration of Directors categorised into appropriate components for the financial year ended 31 January
2006 is as follows:

Category of Directors

Fees
RM

Salary
RM

Bonus
RM

Benefitsin-kind
RM

Tot
al
otal
RM

Executive Director
Non-Executive Directors

10,000
85,000

484,460
-

220,220
-

7,800
-

722,480
85,000

The aggregate remuneration of Directors analysed into bands for the financial year ended 31 January 2006 is as follows:
Range of Remuneration
Below RM50,000
RM50,001 - RM100,000
RM100,001 - RM150,000
RM150,001 - RM400,000
RM400,001 - RM600,000
RM600,001 - RM650,000
RM650,001 - RM700,000
RM700,001 - RM750,000

Executive Director

Non-Executive Directors

1

5
-

(v) Directors’ Training
Every Director of the Company undergoes continuous training to equip himself/herself to effectively discharge his/ her duties as
a Director. All the Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme conducted in accordance with the Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) Listing Requirements. Each of the Directors has also accumulated the requisite
Continuing Education Programme points for the years 2003 and 2004 as specified by Bursa Malaysia.
Under the revised Bursa Malaysia Listing Requirements, the Board will assume the onus of determining or overseeing the
training needs of their Directors from year 2005 onwards. Directors are encouraged to attend various training programmes to
ensure that they are kept abreast on key issues facing the changing business environment within which the Group operates.
For the year under review, the Directors have attended training programmes covering a wide range of current business
development and corporate regulatory development such as brand management, competitive strategies and a training on
Financial Reporting Standards conducted by PricewaterhouseCoopers.
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GOVERNANCE (cont’d)
THE BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board delegates certain responsibilities to Board Committees, namely the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and ESOS Committee. All committees have written terms of reference and report to the Board on their proceedings and
deliberations.
(i)

Audit Committee
Please refer to pages 24 to 26

(ii) Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee’s primary function is to propose new nominees on the Board and assess directors on an on-going
basis. The actual decision as to who shall be nominated is the responsibility of the full Board after considering the recommendations
of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Ms Pauline Tan Suat Ming.
(iii) Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee’s primary function is to set the policy framework and recommend to the Board the remuneration
packages and benefits extended to the Directors, drawing from outside advice where necessary. The determination of the
remuneration package for Directors is a matter of the Board as a whole. The Director concerned abstains from deliberations and
voting on decisions in respect of his/her individual remuneration package.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Encik Daud Mah Bin Abdullah.
(iv) ESOS Committee
The ESOS Committee's primary function is to administer the Employees’ Share Option Scheme in accordance with the
Bye-Laws.
The ESOS Committee is chaired by Encik Daud Mah Bin Abdullah.

RELA
TIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS
RELATIONSHIP
The Board recognises the need to maintain effective communication with shareholders, stakeholders and the public on all material
business matters affecting the Company. In addition to the announcements on quarterly results and other corporate news, press
releases and announcements for public dissemination are made periodically to capture any significant corporate event or product
launch that would be of interest to investors and members of the public.
The company website at http://www.goldis.com.my provides an easy and convenient avenue for shareholders and investors to
gain access to the Group's press releases and other corporate information.
Announcements to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on corporate news, quarterly results and annual report, that contain current
and historical information, are accessible to shareholders through Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s website at
http://www.bursamalaysia.com.
The Annual General Meeting provides an open forum at which shareholders and investors are informed of the current developments
with opportunities for shareholders to raise questions. The Annual Report, which contains the financial and operational review of the
Group’s business, corporate information, financial statements and information on the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, is
sent to all shareholders on a timely basis.
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GOVERNANCE (cont’d)
ACCOUNT
ABILITY AND AUDIT
ACCOUNTABILITY
(i) Financial Reporting
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1965 and applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia. In presenting the financial statements, the
Company used appropriate accounting policies which are consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates. The Directors also ensure that the financial statements presents a fair and understandable assessment
of the Company’s position and prospects. Quarterly financial statements were reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved
by the Board prior to the release to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and Securities Commission.
(ii) Internal Control
The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control and risk management to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Statement of Internal Control is set out on page 23 of this Annual Report
providing an overview of the state of internal control within the Group.
(iii) Relationship with the Auditors
The Board has established a formal and transparent professional relationship with the Group’s auditors through the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee has been accorded the power to communicate directly with both the external auditors and the
internal auditors.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMA
TION
INFORMATION
Share Buy-Back
The Company had on 22 June 2005 obtained its shareholders’ approval at the Extraordinary General Meeting to buy back shares of
the Company. However, the Company has not conducted any share buy back for the financial year ended 31 January 2006.
Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”)
During the financial year ended 31 January 2006, 310,000 options were exercised pursuant to the ESOS which was approved by
the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 21 December 2001.
Material contracts
There were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries which involves Directors or major shareholders
either still subsisting at the end of the financial year or entered into since the end of the previous financial year.

DIRECT
ORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ST
ATEMENT
DIRECTORS’
STA
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and Company as at 31 January 2006 and of the results and cash flows of the Group and Company for the financial year ended on
that date.
The Directors are pleased to announce that in preparing the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 January 2006, the
Group has:
•
•
•

ensured compliance with applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965;
adopted and consistently applied appropriate accounting policies; and
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Group and Company keep proper accounting records. In addition, the
Directors have overall responsibilities for the proper safeguarding of the assets of the Group and Company and taking such
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its adequacy and integrity. Its review covers
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. The system of internal control is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material errors, misstatement, losses or fraud.
For joint ventures and associated companies, its respective management has an existing monitoring function to assist them in
ensuring the system of internal control is functioning as intended. The Management of Goldis Berhad believes that the system of
internal control of these companies is adequate through regular performance reviews.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board recognises that risk management is an integral part of the system of internal control and good management practice that
strengthens the business planning processes.
There is an on-going and systematic risk management process undertaken by Management to identify, assess and evaluate principal
risks and to ensure that appropriate risk treatments are in place to mitigate those risks affecting the achievement of the Group's
business objectives.

OTHER KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
The other key elements of the Group’s internal control system include:

Clearly defined lines of responsibility and delegated authority
The Group has an organisational structure which clearly defines the responsibilities and reporting lines including relevant authorisation
levels.
Management Meetings
The Chairman/Group Chief Executive Officer meets periodically with the Group’s departmental heads to share information, monitor
the progress of various business units, and to deliberate and decide upon operational matters, and with the respective business unit
Chief Executive Officer to review the business unit’s financial performance, business development, management and corporate
issues.
Budget
The Annual Budgets are prepared by each operating company in the Group and are submitted to the Board for approval. It provides
the Board with comparative information to assess and monitor performance of the Group.
Internal Audit
The Group Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Group functionally to preserve the independence
of the function. The internal audit work is focused on areas of priority as identified by risk analyses in accordance with its 5-year
audit plan (which is updated as and when necessary) and annual audit plan as approved by the Audit Committee.
External Audit
The external auditors are engaged to express an opinion on the financial statements. They review and test the system of the internal
control and the data contained in the financial statements to the extent necessary to express their audit opinion. Findings arising from
the audit are discussed with Management and reported to the Audit Committee.
Information and Communication
The Management Information Systems provide the Board with relevant and timely reports for monitoring the financial performance
and the business operation of the Group.

MONITORING
The Board reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group at periodic Board meetings and the system of
internal control will continue to be reviewed, enhanced and updated in line with the changes in the operating environment.
The Board is pleased to report that there were no material internal control system failures nor have any of the reported weaknesses
resulted in material losses or contingencies during the financial year.
This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors passed on 23 March 2006.
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Audit

COMMITTEE REPORT
The Board is pleased to issue the following report on the Audit Committee and its activities during the financial year ended 31 January 2006.

MEMBERS AND MEETINGS
Name

Membership status

Meeting Attended

% of Attendance

Tan Kim Leong (Chairman)

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

4/4

100

Daud Mah Bin Abdullah

Independent
Non-Executive Director

4/4

100

Tan Boon Lee

Non-Independent
Non-Executive Director

2/4

50

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
A

Objectives
The primary objectives of the Audit Committee are:
(1) To ensure transparency, integrity and accountability of the Group’s activities so as to safeguard the rights and interests of
the shareholders.
(2) To provide assistance to the Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to the Group’s management of principal risks,
internal control, financial reporting and compliance with the statutory and legal requirements.
(3) To maintain regularly scheduled meetings, a direct line of communication between the Board, senior management, internal
and external auditors.

B

Membership
The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst its directors and shall consist of not less than three (3)
members, a majority of whom shall be independent directors. If membership for any reason falls below three (3) members, the
Board shall within three (3) months of that event, appoint such number of new members as may be required to fulfil the minimum
requirement.
(1) The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a chairman from among their number who shall be an independent director.
(2) No alternate director shall be appointed to the Audit Committee.
(3) At least one member of the Audit Committee:
(a) must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”); or
(b) if he is not a member of the MIA, he must have at least three (3) years of working experience and have passed the
examination specified in Part I of the 1st Schedule of the Accountants Act, 1967; or he must be a member of one of the
Associations of Accountants specified in Part II of the said Schedule; or
(c) has a degree/masters/doctorate in accounting or finance and at least three years’ post qualification experience in
accounting or finance; or
(d) at least seven (7) years of experience being a chief financial officer of a corporation or having the function of being
primarily responsible for the management of the financial affairs of a corporation.
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COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)
C

Authority
The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to:
(1) Investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
(2) Seek any information it requires from any employee and all employees are directed to co-operate with any request made
by the Audit Committee.
(3) Obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant
experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.
The Audit Committee shall have direct access to the internal and external auditors, who in turn, have access at all times to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. Where necessary, the Audit Committee meets with the external auditors without any executive
members of the Audit Committee present except for the Company Secretary.

D

Functions
The functions of the Audit Committee are:
(1) To review and discuss the following with the external auditors:(a) their audit plan;
(b) their evaluation of the internal control system;
(c) their audit report;
(d) the assistance given by the employees of the Company to them;
(2) To review the following in respect of internal auditors:(a) the adequacy of the scope and plan, functions and resources of the internal audit function and that it has the
necessary authority to carry out its works;
(b) the internal audit programme, processes and results of the internal audit programme, processes or investigation
undertaken and ensure that appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function;
(c) the effectiveness of the internal control system;
(d) the major findings of internal audit and management’s response;
(3) To review the quarterly results and year end financial statements, prior to the submission to the Board for their approval,
focusing particularly on:(a) going concern assumptions;
(b) changes in or implementation of major accounting policy changes;
(c) significant and unusual events; and
(d) compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements;
(4) To review any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Company or Group,
including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity;
(5) To consider and recommend the nomination and appointment, the audit fee and any questions of resignation, dismissal or
re-appointment of the external auditors; and
(6) Such other functions as may be agreed to by the Audit Committee and the Board.
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COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)
E

Meetings and Minutes
Meetings shall be held not less than four (4) times a year. The external auditors may request for a meeting and shall have the
right to appear and be heard at any meeting of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee Chairman shall convene a meeting
whenever any member of the Audit Committee requests for a meeting. Written notice of the meeting together with the agenda
shall be given to the members of the Audit Committee and the external auditors, where applicable.
Members may, if they think fit, confer by radio, telephone, closed circuit television or other electronic means of audio or audiovisual communication and a resolution or decision passed by such a conference will, despite the fact that the members are not
present together in one place at the time of the conference, be deemed to have been passed at the Audit Committee Meeting held
on the day on which and at the time at which the conference was held. Any meeting held in such manner shall be deemed to be
held at such place as shall be agreed upon by the members attending the meeting provided that at least one (1) member present
at the meeting was at such place for the duration of the meeting.
The quorum for a meeting shall be two (2) provided always that the majority of members present must be independent directors
and any decision shall be by a simple majority. The Audit Committee Chairman shall not have a casting vote.
Other Board members and employees may attend any particular meeting only at the Audit Committee’s invitation.
The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Audit Committee and shall circulate the minutes of meeting of the Audit
Committee to all members of the Board.

ACTIVITIES UNDER
TAKEN BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
UNDERT
The Audit Committee has discharged its duties as set out in its Term of Reference. The major areas reviewed by the Audit Committee
during the financial year ended 31 January 2006 were as follows:
(a) Reviewed the audit plan, audit strategy and scope of work of the external auditors;
(b) Reviewed and approved the internal audit plan and work of the internal auditors;
(c) Reviewed the audited financial statements and recommended the same to the Board for approval;
(d) Reviewed the quarterly financial results for announcement to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and recommended the same to
the Board for approval;
(e) Reviewed the adequacy and integrity of the internal control system;
(f) Reviewed the risk management programme to safeguard the companies’ assets; and
(g) Reviewed the related party transactions entered into by the Group.

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Audit Committee has reviewed and verified that the allocations of options granted during the financial year under the Company’s
Scheme were made in accordance with the criteria as set out in the Bye-Laws and which were approved by the Employees' Share
Option Scheme Committee.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Group has an Internal Audit Department which assists the Audit Committee in obtaining sufficient assurance of regular review
and/or appraisal of the effectiveness of the system of internal control within the Group.
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Directors’
REPORT
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006

The Directors are pleased to submit their report to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 January 2006.

PRINCIP
AL ACTIVITIES
PRINCIPAL
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management services. The principal activities of the
Group's subsidiaries are healthcare management services, information and communication technology services, paper manufacturing
and provision of engineering services for water treatment plants and related services.
The Group’s associates and jointly-controlled entities are principally involved in investment holding, property investment and
development.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Change of name
On 8 July 2005, the Company changed its name from Gold IS Berhad to Goldis Berhad.

FINANCIAL RESUL
TS
RESULTS
Group
RM

Company
RM

Profit from ordinary activities after taxation
Minority interest

35,407,276
(2,776,480)

5,380,509
-

Net profit for the financial year

32,630,796

5,380,509

SHARE CAPIT
AL
CAPITAL
During the financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM320,632,830 to RM320,942,830 by
way of issuance of 310,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each pursuant to the exercise of the Employees’ Share Option Scheme
(“ESOS”) at an exercise price of RM1.17 per share. The premium arising from the exercise of ESOS of RM52,700 has been credited
to the Share Premium account.
The new ordinary shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

DIVIDENDS
The dividends on ordinary shares paid or declared by the Company since 31 January 2005 were as follows:
RM

In respect of the financial year ended 31 January 2005, as shown in the Directors’ report of
that financial year, a first and final dividend of 2.5 sen per share, less income tax of 28%, on
320,632,830 shares, paid on 29 July 2005

5,771,391

The Directors now recommend the payment of a first and final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 January 2006 of 1.5
sen per share less income tax of 28% and 1.0 sen per share tax exempt on 320,942,830 ordinary shares, amounting to RM6,675,611
which, subject to the approval of members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, will be paid on 27 July 2006
to shareholders registered on the Company's Register of Members at the close of business on 4 July 2006.
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REPORT (cont’d)
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
All material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year are shown in the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company’s Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) was approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 21 December 2001 and became effective on 20 May 2002, for a period of five years, in accordance with the ESOS ByeLaws.
At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 22 June 2005, the ESOS Bye-Laws were amended to approve the grant of options to
Non-Executive Directors. On that date, the Directors were authorised to offer and grant options to the following Non-Executive
Directors:
Tan Kim Leong @ Tan Chong Min
Pauline Tan Suat Ming
Tan Boon Lee
Daud Mah bin Abdullah @ Mah Siew Whye
On 28 July 2005, the Company granted 2,710,000 new ESOS to Executive Director and eligible employees at an exercise price of
RM1.17 per share.
On 5 October 2005, the Company granted 1,000,000 new ESOS to Non-Executive Directors at an exercise price of RM1.15 per
share.
The main features of the ESOS and the movements during the financial year in the number of options over ordinary shares of the
Company are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.
The Company has been granted exemption by the Companies Commission of Malaysia vide their letter dated 14 November 2005 from
having to disclose the list of option holders and their holdings pursuant to Section 169(11) of the Companies Act, 1965 except for
information of employees who were granted 250,000 options and above.
Other than the options over ordinary shares granted to the Directors of the Company as disclosed under the Directors’ interests in
shares, there were no employee of the Company and its subsidiaries who were granted 250,000 options and above under the ESOS
during the financial year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who have held office during the period since the date of the last report are as follows:
Tan Lei Cheng
Tan Kim Leong @ Tan Chong Min
Pauline Tan Suat Ming
Tan Boon Lee
Daud Mah bin Abdullah @ Mah Siew Whye
Harun bin Hashim Mohd

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company is a party, being arrangements with the
object or objects of enabling Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate, other than the Company’s Employees’ Share Option Scheme (see Note 7).
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than Directors’
remuneration disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation
with the Director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
According to the Register of Directors' Shareholdings, particulars of interests of Directors who held office at the end of the financial
year in shares and options over ordinary shares in the Company and its related corporations are as follows:
Number of ordinary shares of RM1.00 each

Direct shareholdings in the Company
Tan Lei Cheng
Tan Boon Lee
Pauline Tan Suat Ming
Indirect shareholdings in the Company
Pauline Tan Suat Ming

At
1.2.2005

Additions

Disposals

At
31.1.2006

1,945,907
2,036,657
120,833

300,000
-

-

2,245,907
2,036,657
120,833

88,172,735

1,490,000

-

89,662,735

Pauline Tan Suat Ming is deemed to have an interest in the shares in the Company by virtue of her shareholdings in Tan Kim Yeow Sdn
Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965.
Number of options over ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
At
At
1.2.2005
Granted
31.1.2006
Exercised
Share options in the Company
Tan Lei Cheng
Tan Boon Lee
Tan Kim Leong @ Tan Chong Min
Pauline Tan Suat Ming
Daud Mah bin Abdullah @ Mah Siew Whye

500,000
-

2,000,000
250,000
250,000
250,000
250,000

300,000
-

2,200,000
250,000
250,000
250,000
250,000

None of the other Directors in office at the end of the financial year held any interest in shares and options over ordinary shares in
the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.

ST
ATUT
OR
Y INFORMA
TION ON THE FINANCIAL ST
ATEMENTS
STA
TUTOR
ORY
INFORMATION
STA
Before the income statements and balance sheets were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:
(a) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful
debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for
doubtful debts; and
(b) to ensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business their
values as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company had been written down to an amount which they
might be expected so to realise.
At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(a) which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; or
(b) which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading; or
(c) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the
Company misleading or inappropriate.
No contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after
the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet
their obligations when they fall due.
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At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(a) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures
the liability of any other person; or
(b) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.
At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial
statements which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.
In the opinion of the Directors:
(a) the results of the Group's and of the Company's operations during the financial year were not substantially affected by any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and
(b) there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event
of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the Company for the
financial year in which this report is made.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DA
TE
DATE
On 7 April 2006, the Company had disposed 9,318,345 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in KrisAssets Holdings Berhad ("Kris") , a
subsidiary of the Company’s associate, IGB Corporation Berhad, for a cash consideration of RM25,159,532. Pursuant to the
disposal, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary's total equity interest in Kris has reduced from 21,113,184 ordinary shares
of RM1.00 each to 11,794,839 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each, representing 3.57% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Kris.

AUDITORS
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 8 May 2006.

Tan Lei Cheng
Director

Tan Boon Lee
Director
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Income STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006

Group
Note
Revenue

5

Cost of sales

2006
RM
183,028,010
11,056,253)
(11
(1

Company
2006
RM

2005

11,050,289
-

9,264,277

2005
RM
157,502,815
(83,802,932)

RM

-

71,971,757
3,544,068

12,461,721

Selling and distribution expenses

(42,939,072)

(42,675,283)

Administrative expenses

(19,624,637)
(1,723,683)

(22,259,723)

11,228,433
(6,912,826)

20,485,573

46,986,916

39,686,572

-

-

(5,076,496)

3,487,530

-

-

46,226,027

59,552,636

6,048,039

8,506,375

7,092,610
(16,306,714)
(1,604,647)

(10,446,323)

(10,818,751)

(11,310,780)

48,241,856

Minority interest

35,407,276
(2,776,480)

Net profit for the financial year

Gross profit
Other operating income

Other operating expenses
Profit from operations

6

Finance costs

8

Share of results of associates

73,699,883

(741,025)

(4,107,039)

11,050,289
187,366

2,415,037

-

-

9,264,277

(3,578,476)
-

(2,873,905)

7,659,179
(1,611,140)
(1,61
1,140)

8,805,409

-

(299,034)

Share of results of jointly-controlled
entities
Profit from ordinary activities before
taxation
Taxation:

9

- Company and subsidiaries
- Associates
- Jointly-controlled entities

644,622

(667,530)
-

(1,509,079)

(667,530)

(1,065,781)
(1,065,781)

Profit from ordinary activities after
taxation

7,440,594

(3,793,556)

5,380,509
-

32,630,796

44,448,300

5,380,509

7,440,594

Basic earnings per share (sen)
- basic

10
10

10.18
10.16

13.86

- diluted

11

2.5

2.5

13.86

Dividends per ordinary share
in respect of the financial year (sen)
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Balance SHEETS
as at 31 January 2006

Group

2005

RM

2006
RM

113,697,103
741,386,042
68,047,008
1,908,083
1,741,404

89,232,025
720,467,729
80,351,545
1,904,663
1,477,165

262,083
38,496,390
605,392,555
-

138,033
16,281,388
605,257,855
16,000,000
-

926,779,640

893,433,127

644,151,028

637,677,276

12,657,854
61,333
41,917
123,934,697
3,818,289
61,553,952

23,867,935
61,333
57,600
80,951,361
3,301,800
27,451,112

88,387,107
41,917
35,694
1,642,105
25,121,329

116,027,891
57,600
126,275
1,020,223
5,112,860

202,068,042

135,691,141

115,228,152

122,344,849

42,784,024
180,179,445
5,179,297
709,776

41,049,173
39,226
99,201,321
2,830,653
6,629,310

144,936
40,000,000
-

759,699
40,000,000
-

228,852,542

149,749,683

40,144,936

40,759,699

(26,784,500)

(14,058,542)

75,083,216

81,585,150

26

8,986,827

21,604,435

-

-

28

256,549

746,110

-

-

9,243,376

22,350,545

-

-

890,751,764

857,024,040

719,234,244

719,262,426

320,942,830
385,368,892
(2,781,006)
5,762,680
2,343,241
6,675,61
1
6,675,611
154,143,423

320,632,830
385,316,192
(3,424,666)
2,378,201
2,343,241
5,771,391
128,188,238

320,942,830
385,368,892
6,675,61
1
6,675,611
6,246,91
1
6,246,911

320,632,830
385,316,192
5,771,391
7,542,013

872,455,671
18,296,093

841,205,427
15,818,613

719,234,244
-

719,262,426
-

890,751,764

857,024,040

719,234,244

719,262,426

Note
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Subsidiaries
Associates
Jointly-controlled entities
Unquoted investments, at cost
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Quoted investments
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due from associates
Receivables, deposits and prepayments
Tax recoverable
Deposits, cash and bank balances

Less: Current liabilities
Payables and accruals
Amount due to a related company
Bank borrowings
Bank overdrafts
Current tax liabilities

12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
23

24
25
26
27

Net current (liabilities)/assets
Less: Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings
Hire-purchase and finance lease
payables

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium
Exchange fluctuation reserve
Reserve on consolidation
Capital reserve
Proposed dividend reserve
Retained earnings
Shareholders' equity
Minority interest

Company

29
30

31
31

2006
RM

2005

RM
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At 31 January 2006

financial year ended
31 January2006

RM

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

52,700

(2,781,006)

-

-

643,660
-

-

-

643,660

-

(3,424,666)

RM

RM

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,762,680 2,343,241

-

-

3,384,479
-

3,359,479

25,000

-

-

2,378,201 2,343,241

RM

Capital
reserve

The accounting policies on pages 38 to 44 and the notes on pages 45 to 72
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320,942,830 320,942,830 385,368,892

-

-

Net profit for the financial year

-

-

-

-

310,000

-

-

310,000

Dividends paid for the financial
year ended 31 January 2005

Proposed dividends for the

RM

Nominal
value

Non-distributable
Exchange
Share fluctuation
Reserve on
premium
reserve consolidation

320,632,830 320,632,830 385,316,192

-

Net gain not recognised in
income statement

in a subsidiary
Reserve on consolidation arising
from acquisition of a subsidiary

from additional investment

Currency translation differences
Reserve on consolidation arising

Issuance of shares

At 1 February 2005

Group

Number of
shares

ordinary shares
of RM1.00 each

Issued and fully paid

Statements
of
CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006

34
6,675,61
1
6,675,611

6,675,61
1
6,675,611

(5,771,391)

-

-

-

-

-

5,771,391

RM

reserve

Proposed
dividend

154,143,423

(6,675,61
1)
(6,675,611)

-

32,630,796

-

-

-

-

128,188,238

RM

Retained
earnings

Distributable

872,455,671

-

(5,771,391)

4,028,139
32,630,796

3,359,479

25,000

643,660

362,700

841,205,427

RM

Tot
al
otal
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At 31 January 2005

31 January 2005

financial year ended

Proposed dividends for the

year ended 31 January 2005

-

-

-

-

-

-

Exchange

Non-distributable

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,378,201 2,343,241

-

-

-

13,438

13,438

-

2,364,763 2,343,241

Capital
reserve
RM

The accounting policies on pages 38 to 44 and the notes on pages 45 to 72
form an integral part of these financial statements.

(3,424,666)

-

-

-

(566,486)

-

(566,486)

(2,858,180)

Share fluctuation
Reserve on
premium
reserve consolidation
RM
RM
RM

320,632,830 320,632,830 385,316,192

-

-

-

-

-

income statement

Dividends paid for the financial

RM

Nominal
value

320,632,830 320,632,830 385,316,192

Net profit for the financial year

Net (loss)/gain not recognised in

from acquisition of a subsidiary

Reserve on consolidation arising

Currency translation differences

At 1 February 2004

Group

Number of
shares

of RM1.00 each

Issued and fully paid
ordinary shares

Statements
of CHANGES IN EQUITY (cont’d)
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006
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5,771,391

5,771,391

(4,617,113)

-

-

-

-

4,617,113

RM

dividend
reserve

Proposed

128,188,238

(5,771,391)

-

44,448,300

-

-

-

89,511,329

Retained
earnings
RM

Distributable

841,205,427

-

(4,617,113)

44,448,300

(553,048)

13,438

(566,486)

801,927,288

RM

Tot
al
otal
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At 31 January 2005

year ended 31 January 2005

Proposed dividends for the financial

ended 31 January 2004

Dividends paid for the financial year

320,632,830

-

-

-

320,632,830

320,942,830

-

385,316,192

-

-

-

385,316,192

385,368,892

-

-

-

5,771,391

5,771,391

(4,617,113)

-

4,617,113

6,675,61
1
6,675,611

6,675,61
1
6,675,611

7,542,013

(5,771,391)

-

7,440,594

5,872,810

6,246,91
1
6,246,911

(6,675,61
1)
(6,675,611)

-

5,380,509

(5,771,391)

7,542,013
-

RM

Retained
earnings

5,771,391
-

RM

Proposed
dividend reserve

Distributable

The accounting policies on pages 38 to 44 and the notes on pages 45 to 72
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320,632,830

-

-

-

320,632,830

At 1 February 2004

Net profit for the financial year

320,942,830

At 31 January 2006

year ended 31 January 2006

Proposed dividends for the financial
-

-

-

-

-

Net profit for the financial year

Dividends paid for the financial year
ended 31 January 2005

At 1 February 2005
Issuance of shares

385,316,192
52,700

RM

RM

320,632,830
310,000

Share
premium

Non-distributable

Nominal
value

320,632,830
310,000

Company

Number of
shares

Issued and fully paid
ordinary shares
of RM1.00 each

Statements
of
CHANGES IN EQUITY (cont’d)
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006

36
719,262,426

-

(4,617,113)

7,440,594

716,438,945

719,234,244

-

(5,771,391)

5,380,509

719,262,426
362,700

RM

Tot
al
otal

Cash Flow
STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006

Note
Operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash used in operations
Dividends received
Interests received
Interests paid
Income tax refunded
Income tax paid
Net cash flows (used in)/from
operating activities
Investing activities
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Additional investment in:
- a subsidiary
- associates
- a jointly-controlled entity
Purchase of unquoted investment
Proceeds from:
- disposal of investments
- shares issued to minority interest
Property, plant and equipment
- additions
- disposals
Advances from subsidiaries
Repayment of advances from subsidiaries
Advances from associates
Repayment of advances from associates
Advances from jointly-controlled entities
Advances to jointly-controlled entities
Advances from a related company
Repayment of advances to a related
company
Net cash flows (used in)/from
investing activities

4

2005
RM

139,591,815
(150,882,622)

(5,769,939)

155,400
(2,784,957)

(23,005,483)
9,574,940
194,055
(6,912,826)
465,363
(72,095)

(11,290,807)
7,444,241
258,229
(4,107,039)
(832,641)

(5,769,939)
8,902,488
187,366
-

(2,629,557)
7,307,473
194,929
(211,550)

(19,756,046)

(8,528,017)

3,319,915

4,661,295

(1,357,945)

(241,781)

-

(215,000)
(134,700)
-

(45,261,839)
(1,800,000)
(261,630)

(7,325,851)
1,217,600
15,683
275,035
(39,226)

(6,215,002)
(134,700)
-

5,200,695
1,309,500
(2,930,562)
4,344,053
96,007
(190,467)
39,226

(158,664)
28,589,928
15,683
-

-

(7,564,404)

(39,696,798)

22,097,245

362,700
1,355
95,211,355
95,21
(29,921,442)

73,733,425
(20,237,978)

362,700
-

(639,830)

(773,681)

-

23

Company
2006
RM

2005
RM

158,633,132
(181,638,615)

-

Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Deposits pledged as security for bank
borrowings
Deposits pledged as security for bank
borrowings which was withdrawn
during the financial year
Payment of hire-purchase and finance
lease liabilities
Dividends paid
Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents during the
financial year
Currency translation differences
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the financial year

Group
2006
RM

(265,885)
-

5,528,614

(243,746)
(45,000,000)
(1,800,000)
2,220,108
(94,402)
713,643
96,007
(112,755)
(44,221,145)
40,000,000
(271,352)
3,042,422

(916,763)
(5,771,391)

(838,951)
(4,617,113)

(5,771,391)

(4,617,113)

58,324,629

52,794,316

(5,674,576)

38,153,957

31,004,179
110,187

4,569,501
(1,285,580)

19,742,584
-

(1,405,893)
-

23,846,778

20,562,857

4,841,508

6,247,401

54,961,144

23,846,778

24,584,092

4,841,508
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Summary of Significant

ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006
The following accounting policies have been used consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the
financial statements.
(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention and comply
with the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board ("MASB") approved accounting standards in Malaysia and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1965.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and the MASB approved
accounting standards in Malaysia requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reported financial year. Although these estimates are based on the Directors' best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.
(b) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated income statement and balance sheet include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries
made up to the end of the financial year. Subsidiaries are consolidated using the acquisition method of accounting. Under the
acquisition method of accounting, subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and
are no longer consolidated from the date the control ceases. The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed during the
financial year are included in the consolidated income statement from the date of their acquisition or up to the date of their
disposal.
At the date of acquisition, the fair values of the subsidiaries' net assets are determined and these values are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements. The difference between the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the fair values of
the identifiable net assets of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition is reflected as goodwill or reserve on
consolidation and are taken to reserves in the year of acquisition.
Consolidated financial statements reflect external transactions only. All inter company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless cost cannot be
recovered. Where necessary, accounting policies for subsidiaries are changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
Minority interest is measured at the minorities' share of the post acquisition fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the acquiree. Separate disclosure is made of minority interest.
The net gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary is the difference between net disposal proceeds and the Group's share of its
net assets together with the balance of goodwill and exchange fluctuation differences which were not previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
(c) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those corporations in which the Group has power to exercise control over the financial and operating policies
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment
is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. See accounting policy Note (h) on impairment of assets.
(d) Associates
Associates are companies in which the Group exercises significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the associates but not control over those policies.
Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements by the equity method of accounting.
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Summary of Significant

ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006
(d) Associates (cont’d)
Equity accounting involves recognising in the income statement the Group's share of the results of associates for the financial
year. The Group's investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at an amount that reflects its share of the net
assets of the associates. Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment in an associate
reaches zero, unless the Group has incurred obligations or guaranteed obligations in respect of the associate.
At the date of acquisition, the fair values of the associates' net assets are determined and these values are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements. The differences between the cost of acquisition and the Group's share of the fair values of
the identifiable net assets of the associates acquired at the date of acquisition is reflected as goodwill or reserve on consolidation
and are stated at cost.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Where necessary, in applying the equity method, adjustments are made to the financial statements of associates to ensure
consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.
(e) Jointly-controlled entities
Jointly-controlled entities are entities over which there is contractually agreed sharing of control by the Group with one or more
parties. The Group's interest in jointly-controlled entities is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements by the equity
method of accounting.
The Group's share of results of the jointly-controlled entities included in the consolidated financial statements is accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. The Group's investments in jointly-controlled entities are carried in the balance sheet at
an amount that reflects its share of the net assets of the jointly-controlled entities.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the jointly-controlled entities; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred. Where necessary, in applying the equity method, adjustments have been made to the
financial statements of the jointly-controlled entities to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.
(f) Property
Property,, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Freehold land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an infinite useful life. Depreciation on capital work-in-progress
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciation on the other property, plant and equipment is calculated so as to write off the cost of the assets on a straight line
basis to their residual values over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. The annual rates of the depreciation are
as follows:
%
Leasehold land
Over the lease period of 50 to 99 years
Building
2 -10
Plant and machinery
12
Furniture, fixtures, fittings and equipment
8 - 20
Motor vehicles
20
Gymnasium and electrical equipment
20
Renovation
10 - 20
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised in the income
statement.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the asset is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. See accounting policy Note (h) on impairment of assets.
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Summary of Significant

ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont’d)
for the financial year ended 31 January 2006
(g) Investments
Long term investments are stated at cost, unless in the opinion of the Directors, there is a decline other than temporary in the
value of such investments. Where there has been a decline other than temporary in the value of an investment, such a decline
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the decline is identified.
Short-term investments in quoted shares are stated at the lower of cost and market value, determined on an aggregate portfolio
basis by category of investments.
Market value is calculated by reference to stock exchange quoted selling prices at the close of business on the balance sheet
date. Increases/decreases in the carrying amount of investments are credited/charged to the income statement.
On disposal of an investment the difference between net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is charged/credited to the
income statement.
(h) Impairment of assets
Property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's net
selling price and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there
is separately identifiable cash flows.
The impairment loss is charged to the income statement and any subsequent increase in recoverable amount is recognised in
the income statement.
(i) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis, and net realisable value.
The cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the cost of completion and selling
expenses.
(j) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are carried at anticipated realisable values. Bad debts are written off in the financial year in which they are
identified. An estimate is made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the financial year end.
(k) Amounts due from/(to) customers on construction contracts
Where the amounts of construction contract costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress
billings, the net balance is shown as amounts due from customers on construction contracts. Where the progress billings
exceed the sum of construction contract costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognised losses), the net balance is
shown as amounts due to customers on construction contracts.
(l) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, bank overdrafts and other short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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(m) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised based on the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment are capitalised as part
of the cost of these assets until such time that the assets are ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the income statement as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
(n) Hire-purchase and finance leases
Finance leases
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership are
classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the estimated present value of the underlying lease payments at the date of inception. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a periodic constant rate of interest on the
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in payables. The interest
element of the finance charge is charged to the income statement over the lease period.
Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease contracts are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the
asset, in accordance with the annual rates stated in Note (f) above. Where there is no reasonable certainty that the ownership
will be transferred to the Group, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.
Operating leases
Leases of assets where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over
the period of the lease.
(o) Income taxes
Current tax expense is determined according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the Group operates and include all
taxes based upon the taxable profits, including withholding taxes payable by foreign subsidiaries or associates on distributions
of retained earnings to companies in the Group, and real property gains taxes payable on disposal of properties.
Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses
can be utilised.
Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary differences arise from goodwill or reserve on consolidation or from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction which is recognised directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also charged or credited directly to equity, or when it arises from a business
combination that is an acquisition, in which case the deferred tax is included in the resulting goodwill or reserve on consolidation.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and the Group intends to settle
either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(p) Employee benefits
(i)

Short term employee benefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits are accrued in the financial year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

(ii) Defined contribution plans
The Group's contributions to defined contribution plans, including the national defined contribution plan, the Employees'
Provident Fund ("EPF"), are charged to the income statement in the financial year to which they relate. Once the contributions
have been paid, the Group has no further payment obligations.
(q) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Other shares are classified as equity and/or liability according to the economic
substance of the particular instrument.
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when declared before the balance sheet date. A dividend declared
after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements are authorised for issue, is not recognised as a liability at the
balance sheet date but as an appropriation from retained earnings to a "proposed dividend reserve". Upon the dividend
becoming payable, it will be accounted for as a liability.
(r) Contingent liabilities
The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. A contingent liability is
a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare circumstance where there is a liability
that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.
(s) Revenue recognition
(i)

Investment income
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised
as it accrues unless collectability is in doubt, in which case the recognition of such income is suspended. Income arising
from the disposal of investments is taken to the income statement upon disposal of investment.

(ii) Income from sale of goods and services rendered
Income from sale of goods and services rendered are recognised upon delivery of products and customer acceptance, if
any, or performance of services, net of sales taxes, returns and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.
(iii) Construction contracts
A construction contract is a contract specifically negotiated for the construction of an asset or a combination of assets that
are closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and functions or their ultimate purpose or use.
When the outcome of the construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs associated with the
construction contract are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract. The stage of completion of a construction contract is determined based on the proportion that the contract costs
incurred for work performed to-date bear to the estimated total contract costs.
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When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable and contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period.
Where it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the loss is identified.
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(t) Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates
or at contracted rates, where applicable. At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities resulting from foreign currency
transactions are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at rates of exchange ruling at that date or at contracted rates, where applicable.
Exchange differences are dealt with through the income statement.
In the Group financial statements, assets and liabilities and results of operations of foreign subsidiaries are translated into
Ringgit Malaysia at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences on translation are dealt with
through the exchange fluctuation reserve. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the Group and are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
The principal closing rates used in translation of foreign currency amounts are as follows:
Foreign currency

2006
RM

2005
RM

1 US Dollar
1 Singapore Dollar
1 Chinese Renminbi
1 Pound Sterling
1 Hong Kong Dollar
1 Australian Dollar
1 Euro
1 Brunei Dollar
1 Thai Baht
1 New Zealand Dollar

3.750
2.312
0.465
6.666
0.483
2.837
4.554
2.288
0.096
2.589

3.800
2.322
0.459
7.166
0.487
2.941
4.957
2.322
0.099
Not applicable

(u) Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate.
(v) Financial instruments
(i)

Description
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another enterprise.
A financial asset is any asset that is cash, a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another
enterprise, a contractual right to exchange financial instruments with another enterprise under conditions that are potentially
favourable, or an equity instrument of another enterprise.
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another
enterprise, or to exchange financial instruments with another enterprise under conditions that are potentially unfavourable.

(ii) Financial instruments recognised on the balance sheet
The particular recognition method adopted for financial instruments recognised on the balance sheets is disclosed in the
individual accounting policy note associated with each item.
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(iii) Fair value estimation for disclosure purposes
The fair value of publicly traded financial instruments is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
In assessing the fair value of non-traded financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices are used if available or other
techniques, such as estimated discounted value of future cash flows and the underlying net asset base of the instrument,
are used to determine fair value. In particular, the fair value of financial liabilities is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate available to the Group for similar financial instruments.
The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities with a maturity period of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values.
(w) Segment reporting
Segment reporting is presented for enhanced assessment of the Group's risks and returns. Business segments provide
products and services that are subject to risk and returns that are different from those of other business segments. Geographical
segments provide products or services within a particular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those components operating in other economic environments.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are those amounts resulting from the operating activities of a segment that
are directly attributable to the segment and the relevant portion that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to the segment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before intragroup balances and intragroup transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent that such intragroup balances and transactions are
between group enterprises within a single segment.
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1

General information
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management services. The principal activities of
the Group's subsidiaries are healthcare management services, information and communication technology services, paper
manufacturing and provision of engineering services for water treatment plants and related services.
The Group's associates and jointly-controlled entities are principally involved in investment holding, property investment and
development.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.
The Company is a limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and listed on the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad.
The number of employees in the Group and in the Company at the end of the financial year amounted to 895 (2005: 828) and 21
(2005: 15) respectively.
The address of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company is as follows:
Penthouse
Menara Tan & Tan
207, Jalan Tun Razak
50400 Kuala Lumpur

2

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including:
•

foreign currency exchange risk - risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates

•

interest rate risk - risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates

•

cash flow risk - risk that future cash flows associated with a financial instrument will fluctuate. In the case of a floating rate
debt instrument, such fluctuations result in a change in the effective interest rate of the financial instrument, usually without
a corresponding change in its fair value

•

market risk - risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security or its issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the
market

•

credit risk - risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss

•

liquidity risk (funding risk) - risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments associated
with financial instruments

The Group's overall financial risk management policies focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. Financial risk management is carried out through risk
reviews, internal control systems and adherence to the Group's financial risk management policies. The Board regularly
reviews these risks and approves the treasury policies, which covers the management of these risks.
(a) Foreign currency exchange risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk as a result of the foreign currency transactions entered into with companies in
currencies other than their functional currency. The Group mitigates its currency risk exposure by maintaining foreign
currency bank accounts for the underlying foreign currency transactions, where possible. The exposures of the Group to
currency fluctuations are kept at an acceptable level.
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2

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(b) Interest rate risk
The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. Interest
rate exposure arises from the Group's borrowings and deposits, and is managed through the use of fixed and floating rate
debts.
(c) Market risk
For key product purchases, the Group establishes good relationships with major suppliers and monitors the price levels
consistently. Alternative sources of supply are always made available should the pricing of existing suppliers become
unfavourable to the Group.
(d) Credit risk
Credit risk arises when sales are made on credit terms. The Group seeks to invest cash assets safely and profitably. It also
seeks to control credit risk by setting counterparty limits and ensuring that sales of products and services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group considers the risk of material loss in the event of non-performance
by a financial counterparty to be unlikely.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk except that the majority of its deposits are placed with major
financial institutions in countries in which the Group operates such as Malaysia and the People's Republic of China.
The Group trades with a large number of customers who are internationally dispersed with a variety of end markets in
which they sell. Due to these factors, management believes that no additional credit risk beyond amounts allowed for
collection losses is inherent in the Group's trade receivables.
(e) Liquidity and cash flow risks
The Group manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as to ensure that all
repayment and funding requirements are met. As part of its overall prudent liquidity management, the Group maintains
sufficient levels of cash or cash convertible investments to meet its working capital requirements. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying business, the Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines
available.

3

Segment reporting
The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into five main business segments:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Healthcare
Property investment and development, and hotels
Information and communication technology
Paper manufacturing
Others *

*

Others comprise primarily of provision of engineering services for water treatment plants and related services, and other
operations of the Group, which are not of a sufficient size to be reported separately.
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3

Segment reporting (cont’d)

(a) Analysis by business segment
Property
investment
and
development,
and hotels
Healthcare
RM
RM
2006
Revenue
Results :
Segment results
Profits from operations
Finance costs
Share of results:
- Associates
- Jointly-controlled entities
Profit from ordinary activities
before taxation
Taxation
Profit from ordinary activities
after taxation
Minority interest

Information
and
communication
Paper
technology manufacturing
RM
RM

Others
RM

Group
RM

74,932,695

-

39,588,164

63,166,136

5,341,016

183,028,010

2,872,229

(3,664,507)

1,987,818

11,170,192

(1,137,298)

11,228,433
(6,912,826)

-

47,014,418
4,567,310

(27,502)
(9,643,806)

-

-

46,986,916
(5,076,496)
46,226,027
(10,818,751)
35,407,276
(2,776,480)
32,630,796

Net profit for the financial year
Assets employed:
Segment assets
Associates
Jointly-controlled entities

81,006,022
-

83,750,010
740,503,363
68,181,939

49,432,078
882,679
(134,931)

62,456,189
-

37,210,640
-

313,854,939
741,386,042
68,047,008
1,123,287,989
5,559,693

Unallocated corporate assets

1,128,847,682
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

43,917,287

74,244,313

29,413,393

57,377,241

32,433,908

237,386,142
709,776
238,095,918

Capital expenditure
Depreciation

1,708,511
2,162,806

3,679,844
105,483

744,226
622,914

2,974,764
1,697,777

122,517
55,433

9,229,862
4,644,413
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Segment reporting (cont’d)

(a) Analysis by business segment (cont’d)
Property
investment
and
development,
and hotels
Healthcare
RM
RM
2005
Revenue
Results :
Segment results
Profits from operations
Finance costs
Share of results:
- Associates
- Jointly-controlled entities
Profit from ordinary activities
before taxation
Taxation
Profit from ordinary activities
after taxation
Minority interest

Information
and
communication
Paper
technology manufacturing
RM
RM

Others
RM

Group
RM

87,580,233

-

26,213,527

41,076,124

2,632,931

157,502,815

12,657,416

1,100,668

1,492,090

4,032,409

1,202,990

20,485,573
(4,107,039)

-

39,716,072
4,288,533

(29,500)
(801,003)

-

-

39,686,572
3,487,530
59,552,636
(11,310,780)
48,241,856
(3,793,556)

Net profit for the financial year
Assets employed:
Segment assets
Associates
Jointly-controlled entities

44,448,300

86,909,560
-

51,635,191
719,719,750
65,754,538

18,185,462
747,979
14,597,007

56,234,364
-

10,561,452
-

223,526,029
720,467,729
80,351,545
1,024,345,303
4,778,965

Unallocated corporate assets

1,029,124,268
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

46,164,783

40,800,465

9,899,240

60,658,612

7,947,818

165,470,918
6,629,310
172,100,228

Capital expenditure
Depreciation
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2,722,815
2,817,548

547,690
90,061

564,991
496,222

2,802,857
1,694,181

261,145
18,637

6,899,498
5,116,649
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3

Segment reporting (cont’d)

(b) Analysis by geographical location

2006
Malaysia
People's Republic of China
Singapore
Hong Kong

Revenue
RM

Tot
al asset
s
otal
assets
employed
RM

Capital
expenditure
RM

114,524,486
63,166,136
5,337,388
-

208,712,051
61,185,218
46,514,160
3,003,203

6,132,580
3,097,282
-

183,028,010

319,414,632

9,229,862

Associates
Jointly-controlled entities

741,386,042
68,047,008

Tot
al asset
s
otal
assets
2005
Malaysia
People's Republic of China
Singapore
Hong Kong

Associates
Jointly-controlled entities
Total assets

4

1,128,847,682

113,798,935
41,076,124
2,627,756
-

153,049,756
37,604,132
33,802,635
3,848,471

3,835,497
2,802,856
261,145
-

157,502,815

228,304,994

6,899,498

720,467,729
80,351,545
1,029,124,268

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(a) On 28 December 2005, the Company exercised a call option granted by Ecosem Technologies Sdn Bhd to purchase the
remaining 24,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each, representing 60% of the equity interest in Ecosem Sdn Bhd, for a
cash consideration of RM2.
The effect of this acquisition on the financial results of the Group during the financial year ended 31 January 2006 is as
follows:
From date of
acquisition to
31.1.2006
RM
-

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses

(173,266)

Loss from ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation

(173,266)
-

Loss from ordinary activities after taxation
Minority interest

(173,266)
-

Net loss for the financial year

(173,266)
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Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont’d)
The effect of the acquisition on the financial position of the Group as at 31 January 2006 is as follows:
31.1.2006
RM
Property, plant and equipment
Receivables, deposits and prepayments
Deposits, cash and bank balances
Payables and accruals
Bank borrowings
Bank overdrafts

19,389,025
235,375
222,082
(5,730,824)
(3,070,604)
(2,485,327)

Group's share of net assets
Less: Amount accounted for as a jointly-controlled entity at 28 December 2005
Less: Group's share of results had the Group not acquired the additional equity interest

8,559,727
(5,373,512)
(69,306)

Increase in Group net assets

3,1
16,909
3,116,909

Details of net assets acquired, reserve on consolidation and cash flow arising from the acquisition are as follows:
At date of
acquisition
RM
Property, plant and equipment
Receivables, deposits and prepayments
Deposits, cash and bank balances
Payables and accruals
Bank borrowings
Bank overdrafts

19,554,1
13
19,554,113
235,376
222,082
(5,722,647)
(3,070,604)
(2,485,327)

Fair value of total net assets
Less: Amount accounted for as a jointly-controlled entity at 28 December 2005

8,732,993
(5,373,512)

Fair value of net assets acquired
Reserve on consolidation

3,359,481
(3,359,479)

Cost of acquisition

2

Purchase consideration paid
Less: Cash and cash equivalent of subsidiary acquired

2
(1,357,947)

Cash outflow on acquisition

(1,357,945)

(b) On 26 August 2005, the Group had, via its subsidiary, Macro Kiosk Berhad, acquired the entire issued and paid up capital
in Macro Kiosk (HK) Limited, comprising 1 ordinary share of HKD1.00 each, for a cash consideration of HKD1.00.
The above acquisition has no material effect on the financial results and financial position of the Group.
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5

Revenue
Group

Sale of goods and services
Construction contract revenue
Dividend income (gross)
Interest income
Management services

6

Company

2006
RM

2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

177,686,995
5,337,388
3,627
-

157,497,640
5,175
-

10,191,903
715,586
142,800

8,266,389
842,488
155,400

183,028,010

157,502,815

11,050,289

9,264,277

Profit from operations
The following items have been charged/(credited) in arriving at profit from operations:
Group
2006
RM
Property, plant and equipment:
- depreciation
- loss/(gain) on disposal
- written off
Allowance for diminution in value
of investment
Auditors' remuneration
- current year
- under/(over) accrual in prior years
- non-audit fees
Rental of premises
Staff costs
Defined contribution plan
Foreign exchange loss/(gains)
- unrealised
- realised
Inventories:
- written down
- written off
Research and development expenses
Allowance for doubtful debts
Gain on disposal of investments
Interest income (excluding interest
income disclosed as revenue)
Rental income from rental of premises

4,644,413
35,797
80,107
-

Company
2005
RM

5,116,649
(3,942,923)
34,349
83,800

2006
RM

2005
RM

34,614
-

22,142
-

-

-

177,022
300
2,295,453
20,008,705
1,673,067

173,074
(6,271)
70,000
2,951,991
18,492,324
1,792,599

35,000
1,000
246,847
2,025,588
222,329

25,000
70,000
236,675
1,618,940
174,919

278,714
62,758

(1,220,567)
2,444

-

-

392,647
1,291,323
-

10,475
350
46,457
1,317,713
(5,108,870)

-

(194,055)
(549,732)

(258,229)
(575,232)

(187,366)
-

(2,220,108)
(194,929)
-
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Directors' remuneration
The aggregate amount of emoluments received/receivable by Directors of the Group and of the Company during the financial
year was as follows:
Group
Company
2006
2006
2005
2005
RM
RM
RM
RM
Non-executive Directors:
- fees
Executive Directors:
- basic salaries, bonus and allowances
- defined contribution plan
- fees

85,000

80,864

85,000

80,864

704,680
84,648
10,000

634,400
76,128
10,000

704,680
84,648
10,000

634,400
76,128
10,000

884,328

801,392

884,328

801,392

The estimated monetary value of benefits-in-kind provided to the Directors of the Group and of the Company by way of provision
of other benefits amounted to RM7,800 (2005: RM4,200) and RM7,800 (2005: RM4,200) respectively.
Executive Director and certain Non-Executive Directors of the Company have been granted options under the Employee Share
Option Scheme ("ESOS") on the same terms and conditions as those offered to other employees of the Group (see Note 29) as
follows:

Grant date

Expiry date

Exercise price
RM/share

29 September 2003
28 July 2005
5 October 2005

19 May 2007
19 May 2007
19 May 2007

1.00
1.17
1.15

Number of options over ordinary shares
At
At
1.2.2005
Granted
Exercised
31.1.2006
500,000
-

2,000,000
1,000,000

(300,000)
-

500,000
1,700,000
1,000,000

500,000

3,000,000

(300,000)

3,200,000

2006

2005

600,000

200,000

Number of share options vested at balance sheet date

8

Finance costs
Group

Interest expenses on:
- term loans
- revolving credit
- trust receipt/bankers' acceptances
- hire-purchase and finance lease
- bank overdrafts
- others
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Company

2006
RM

2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

2,483,982
4,005,421
249,796
88,153
64,354
21,120

2,103,812
1,387,997
348,156
121,249
104,014
41,811

1,61
1,140
1,611,140
-

299,034
-

6,912,826

4,107,039

1,61
1,140
1,611,140

299,034

Notes to the

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 January 2006

9

Taxation
Group

Current tax
- Malaysian tax
- Foreign tax

Deferred tax (Note 16)

Current tax:
Current tax
(Over)/under accrual in prior years

Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Company

2006
RM

2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

9,327,570
1,755,420

11,712,115
1,670,423

667,530
-

1,065,781
-

11,082,990
(264,239)

13,382,538
(2,071,758)

667,530
-

1,065,781
-

10,818,751

11,310,780

667,530

1,065,781

17,347,965
(6,264,975)

13,205,384
177,154

667,530
-

900,371
165,410

11,082,990

13,382,538

667,530

1,065,781

-

-

667,530

1,065,781

(264,239)
10,818,751

(2,071,758)
11,310,780

The reconciliation between the effective tax rate and the Malaysian tax rate are as follows:
Company

Group

Malaysian tax rate
Tax effects of:
- different tax rates in other countries
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes
- double deduction expenses
- income not subject to tax
- pioneer status tax exemption
- current year's tax losses and deductible
temporary differences not recognised
- utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses
- (over)/under accrual in prior years
Effective tax rate

2006
%

2005
%

2006
%

2005
%

28

28

28

28

1
18
(12)
(16)
(5)

(2)
11
(8)
(6)
(2)

2
(19)
-

(17)
-

23

1

-

-

(1)
(13)

(4)
1

-

2

23

19

11

13

Subject to the agreement by the tax authorities, as at 31 January 2006, one of the Group's subsidiary has unutilised reinvestment
allowances, amounting to RM13,139,328 (2005: RM12,216,316) for which no credit has been recognised.

10 Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share of the Group is calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.
Group
2006
2005
Net profit for the financial year (RM)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Basic earnings per share (sen)

32,630,796
320,684,638
10.18

Annual Report 2006
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10 Earnings per share (cont’d)
(b) Diluted earnings per share
For the diluted earnings per share calculation, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Group has dilutive potential ordinary shares from share
options granted to employees.
In respect of share options granted to employees, a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average share price of the Company's shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options. The difference is added to the
denominator as an issue of ordinary shares for no consideration. This calculation serves to determine the "bonus" element
to the ordinary shares outstanding for the purpose of computing the dilution. No adjustment is made to net profit for the
financial year for the share options calculation.
Group
2006
2005
32,630,796

44,448,300

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Adjustments for exercise of ESOS

320,684,638
374,238

320,632,830
150,750

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share

321,058,876

320,783,580

10.16

13.86

Net profit for the financial year (RM)

Diluted earnings per share (sen)

11

Dividends
Dividends declared or proposed in respect of ordinary shares for the financial year are as follows:
Group and Company
2006
Gross dividend
per share

Final dividend, net of tax at 28%
Final dividend, tax exempt

2005
Gross dividend
per share

sen

Amount of
dividend,
net of tax
RM

sen

Amount of
dividend,
net of tax
RM

1.5
1.0

3,466,183
3,209,428

2.5
-

5,771,391
-

2.5

6,675,61
1
6,675,611

2.5

5,771,391

The Directors now recommend the payment of a first and final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 January 2006
of 1.5 sen per share less income tax of 28% and 1.0 sen per share tax exempt on 320,942,830 ordinary shares, amounting to
RM6,675,611 which, subject to the approval of members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, will be paid
on 27 July 2006 to shareholders registered on the Company's Register of Members at the close of business on 4 July 2006.
These financial statements reflect this first and final dividend as an appropriation from retained earnings into a proposed
dividend reserve.
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38,556,183

-

Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 February 2005/
At 31 January 2006

Net book value
At 31 January 2006

-

At 31 January 2006

38,556,183

-

36,966,183
1,590,000
-

-

4

Note

Freehold
land
RM

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2005
Charge for the financial year
Disposals
Written off
Currency translation differences

At 31 January 2006

Cost
At 1 February 2005
Additions
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Disposals
Written off
Currency translation
differences

Group
2006

12 Property
Property,, plant and equipment

99,562

-

2,645,531

1,808,569
810,584
26,378

3,744,983 34,888,981

-

44,000

33,000
11,000
-

3,788,983 37,534,512

-

25,241,610

-

7,031,777

4,987,498
2,346,925
(353,1
17)
(353,117)
(19,057)
69,528

32,273,387

21
1,881
211,881

22,285,755
696,910
9,520,057
(392,352)
(48,864)

Plant and
Building machinery
RM
RM

2,888,091 27,921,766
900,892
55,127
- 9,458,057
-

Long term
leasehold
land
RM

3,393,628

20,507

2,088,027

2,376,601
871,415
(26,443)
(1,133,604)
58

5,502,162

886

4,684,718
1,483,074
575,999
(59,052)
(1,183,463)

389,275

-

293,970

133,072
158,353
2,545

683,245

7,009

612,663
63,573
-

207,180

-

356,846

398,571
41,074
(82,799)
-

564,026

-

436,051
1,215
21
211,215
(83,240)

1,324,968

-

843,802

438,740
405,062
-

2,168,770

-

1,409,350
759,420
-

Tot
al
otal
RM

575,976

20,507

5,950,295 113,697,103

-

- 13,303,953

- 10,176,051
- 4,644,413
(379,560)
- (1,235,460)
98,509

5,950,295 127,021,563

256,638

2,224,006 99,428,583
3,469,651 9,229,862
- 19,554,1
13
19,554,113
(451,404)
- (1,315,567)

Furniture,
Gymnasium
fixtures,
and
Capital
electrical
work-in
fittings and
Motor
equipment vehicles equipment Renovation -progress
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM

Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
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-

Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 February 2004/
At 31 January 2005

36,966,183

-

At 31 January 2005

Net book value
At 31 January 2005

-

36,966,183

At 31 January 2005

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2004
Charge for the financial year
Disposals
Written off
Currency translation differences

36,966,183
-

Cost
At 1 February 2004
Additions
Disposals
Written off
Reclassification
Currency translation differences

Group
2005

Freehold
land
RM

12 Property
Property,, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Building
RM

Plant and
machinery
RM

Furniture,
fixtures,
fittings and
equipment
RM

-

1,808,569

1,087,305
719,436
1,828

4,684,718

-

4,987,498

2,287,610

20,507

2,376,601

2,813,845 2,174,974
2,174,030 1,408,151
(525) (1,130,388)
(76,277)
148
141

2,855,091 26,113,197 17,298,257

-

33,000

22,000
11,000
-

2,888,091 27,921,766 22,285,755

2,888,091 24,592,063 11,592,388 7,053,582
- 2,825,640
729,141
(7,000) (2,990,714)
(107,291)
- 3,173,074 7,874,727
156,629
-

Long term
leasehold
land
RM

for the financial year ended 31 January 2006

479,591

-

133,072

6,335
126,382
355

612,663

327,479
285,184
-

37,480

-

398,571

842,836
435,152
(721,867)
(157,550)
-

436,051

1,831,462
(1,234,526)
(160,885)
-

Capital
work-in
-progress
RM

Total
RM

970,610

-

438,740

196,161
242,498
81

1,409,350

7,143,456
5,116,649
(1,852,780)
(233,827)
2,553

20,507

2,224,006 89,232,025

-

- 10,176,051

-

2,224,006 99,428,583

1,074,923 10,546,701 96,872,872
334,427 2,725,106 6,899,498
- (4,232,240)
(268,176)
- (11,047,801)
156,629

Gymnasium
and
Motor
electrical
vehicles equipment Renovation
RM
RM
RM

Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
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12 Property
Property,, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Group

Net book value of assets pledged as security for term loans,
revolving credits and trust receipt (Note 26)
- freehold land and related expenditure
- capital work-in-progress
- long term leasehold land and building
- plant and machinery

2006
RM

2005
RM

37,41
1,269
37,411,269
3,521,180
24,561,484
10,571,384

22,279,942
10,784,690

76,065,317

33,064,632

The net book value of plant and machinery under hire purchase and finance lease arrangements at the end of the financial year
amounted to RM1,868,425 (2005: RM1,656,364).
Furniture,
fixtures,
fittings and
equipment
RM
Company 2006
Cost
At 1 February 2005
Additions

176,613
158,664

At 31 January 2006

335,277

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2005
Charge for the financial year

38,580
34,614

At 31 January 2006

73,194

Net book value
At 31 January 2006

262,083

Company 2005
Cost
At 1 February 2005
Additions

82,211
94,402

At 31 January 2006

176,613

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2005
Charge for the financial year

16,438
22,142

At 31 January 2006

38,580

Net book value
At 31 January 2006

138,033
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13 Subsidiaries
Company

Unquoted shares, at cost

2006
RM

2005
RM

38,496,390

16,281,388

The details of subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

Place of
incorporation

Principal activities

Group’s effective
interest
2006
2005
%
%

HoePharma Holdings Sdn Bhd
(formerly known as Diversified
Healthcare Services Sdn Bhd)

Malaysia

Healthcare management
services

78.15

78.15

Macro Lynx Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Broadband web based
solutions

100.00

100.00

Goldis Tower Sdn Bhd
(formerly known as LA
Residence Sdn Bhd)

Malaysia

Property holding

100.00

100.00

Multistock Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Investment trading and
investment holding

100.00

100.00

GoldChina Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Investment holding

90.00

90.00

Sweat Club Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Development and
management of fitness
centres, trading of sports
equipment and sports wear

100.00

100.00

Macro Kiosk Berhad

Malaysia

Mobile communications
technology provider

70.00

70.00

iPanel Malaysia Sdn Bhd +

Malaysia

Sale of electronic products
and intelligent facilities
management system

75.00

51.00

Ecosem Sdn Bhd +

Malaysia

Investment holding and
research, development,
assembly, packaging and
testing of semiconductor
chips and manufacture of
digital power products

100.00

40.00

Macro Mobile Services
Sdn Bhd+
(formerly known as Macro Kiosk
International Sdn Bhd)

Malaysia

Dormant

70.00

70.00

Macro Kiosk Pte Ltd +

Singapore

Mobile communications
technology provider

70.00

70.00

Macro Kiosk Ltd +

Thailand

Mobile communications
technology provider

70.00

70.00

Macro Kiosk (HK) Ltd +

Hong Kong

Mobile communications
technology provider

70.00

-

Held by Macro Kiosk Berhad
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13 Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Name of company

Place of
incorporation

Principal activities

Group’s effective
interest
2006
2005
%
%

Held by Macro Lynx Sdn Bhd
Goldis Yu Sdn Bhd
Malaysia
(formerly known as Hibits Sdn Bhd)

Dormant

100.00

100.00

Held by HoePharma Holdings
Sdn Bhd (formerly known
as Diversified Healthcare
Services Sdn Bhd)
Ecofen Marketing Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Sale of audiology
products

78.15

78.15

HOE Pharmaceuticals Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Manufacturer of
pharmaceutical products

78.15

78.15

Living Tree Pharmacy Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Dormant

78.15

78.15

Diversified Healthcare Services
(Hong Kong) Ltd +

Hong Kong

Healthcare management
services

78.15

78.15

Langkah Motivasi (M) Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Dormant

78.15

78.15

Novalac (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

Sale of baby products

78.15

78.15

Rowille Investment Co. Ltd +

Hong Kong

Investment holding

90.00

90.00

Tramex Pte Ltd +

Singapore

Investment holding

90.00

90.00

Gold China (Shanghai) Co. Ltd +

People's Republic
of China

Management consultancy
services

90.00

90.00

Gold Water Pte Ltd +

Singapore

Investment holding and
provision of pure water
and waste water treatment
plants and related services

90.00

90.00

Manax Limited +

Hong Kong

Investment holding

90.00

90.00

People's Republic
of China

Provision of engineering
services for pure water
and waste water treatment
plants and related services.

90.00

90.00

Held by GoldChina Sdn Bhd

Held by Gold Water Pte Ltd
Gold Water (Shanghai) Co. Ltd +
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13 Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Name of company

Place of
incorporation

Principal activities

Group’s effective
interest
2006
2005
%
%

Held by Manax Limited
Tianjin Manax Natural Fibre
Thin Film Co. Ltd +

+

People's Republic
of China

Paper manufacturing

72.00

72.00

Audited by a firm other than member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Malaysia.

(a) On 26 August 2005, the Group had, via its subsidiary, Macro Kiosk Berhad purchased the entire issued and paid up capital
in Macro Kiosk (HK) Limited, comprising one ordinary share of HKD1.00 each, for a cash consideration of HKD1.00,
resulting in Macro Kiosk (HK) Limited becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of Macro Kiosk Berhad.
(b) On 7 July 2005, the Company had acquired 240,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in iPanel Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. for a cash
consideration of RM215,000, resulting in iPanel Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. becoming a 75% -owned subsidiary of the Company.
(c) On 28 December 2005, the Company exercised a call option granted by Ecosem Technologies Sdn Bhd to purchase the
remaining 24,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each, representing 60% of the equity interest in Ecosem Sdn Bhd, for a
cash consideration of RM2.

14 Associates
Group

Investments, at cost:
Quoted ordinary shares in Malaysia
Unquoted ordinary shares outside
Malaysia

Add: Group's share of postacquisition results and
reserves

Analysis of associates is as follows:
Share of net assets
Less: Reserve on consolidation

Market value :
- Quoted ordinary shares in Malaysia
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Company

2006
RM

2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

640,971,31
1
640,971,311

640,971,311

604,509,876

604,509,876

882,679

747,979

882,679

747,979

641,853,990

641,719,290

605,392,555

605,257,855

99,532,052

78,748,439

-

-

741,386,042

720,467,729

605,392,555

605,257,855

776,822,984
(35,436,942)

755,904,671
(35,436,942)

741,386,042

720,467,729

479,509,576

507,033,343

Notes to the
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14 Associates (cont’d)
Although, at the balance sheet date, the Group's cost of investment in quoted shares of an associate exceeded its market value,
the associate is profitable and its attributable net tangible assets is above the cost of investment. As such, the Directors are of
the opinion that no impairment loss is necessary.
2006
2005
RM
RM
Share of capital commitments - property, plant and equipment
Share of contingent liabilities

171,714,890
26,622,348

103,832,033
16,117,664

The details of associates are as follows:

Name of company

Place of
incorporation

IGB Corporation Berhad

Malaysia

Investment holding and
property development

27.12

28.02

iPanel Pte Ltd +

Singapore

Sale of electronic products
and intelligent facilities
management system

30.00

30.00

+

Principal activities

Group’s effective
interest
2006
2005
%
%

Audited by a firm other than member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Malaysia.

On 6 April 2005, the Group had obtained 21,113,184 KrisAssets Holdings Berhad shares, which were distributed by IGB
Corporation Berhad an associate of the Company, as part of IGB Corporation Berhad’s distribution-in-specie of 77,669,000
KrisAssets Holdings Berhad shares to its shareholders.

15 Jointly-controlled entities
Company

Unquoted shares, at cost

2006
RM

2005
RM

-

16,000,000
Group

Share of net assets of jointly-controlled entities

2006
RM

2005
RM

68,047,008

80,351,545

The details of jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

Name of company

Place of
incorporation

Beijing Jili Plaza Development
Co Ltd +

People's Republic
of China

Property investment

45

45

Macro Kiosk Technologies
(Beijing) Co. Limited

People's Republic
of China

Mobile telecommunications,
technology services and
mobile data solutions

35

-

+

Principal activities

Group’s effective
interest
2006
2005
%
%

Audited by a firm other than member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Malaysia.
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15 Jointly-controlled entities (cont’d)
The following amounts represent the Group's share of assets and liabilities of the jointly-controlled entities:
Group
2006
RM
Property, plant and equipment
Investments
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

2005
RM

74,877,832
1,146,909
45,894,933
(34,583,841)
(19,288,825)

90,845,012
1,230,678
45,863,371
(36,078,202)
(21,509,314)

68,047,008

80,351,545

The Group's share of the revenue and expenses of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows:
Group
2006
RM

2005
RM

21,265,769
(26,342,265)

20,771,302
(17,283,772)

(Loss)/Profit from ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation

(5,076,496)
(1,604,647)

3,487,530
(1,509,079)

(Loss)/Profit from ordinary activities after taxation

(6,681,143)

1,978,451

Revenue
Expenses

16 Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:
Group
2006
2005
RM
RM
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

1,741,404
-

1,477,165
-

1,741,404

1,477,165

At 1 February
Charged/(Credited) to income statement:
- property, plant and equipment
- capital allowance
- tax losses
- accruals

1,477,165

At 31 January

1,741,404
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332,756
14,185)
(114,185)
(1
126,357
(80,689)
264,239

(594,593)
1,369,677
234,432
467,649
2,071,758
1,477,165
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16 Deferred tax (cont’d)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial year (prior to offsetting of balances) are as follows:
Group
2006
RM

2005
RM

873,963
748,798
243,029

566,073
622,441
489,390

Offsetting

1,865,790
(124,386)

1,677,904
(200,739)

Deferred tax assets (after offsetting)

1,741,404

1,477,165

Subject to income tax:
Deferred tax assets (before offsetting)
- property, plant and equipment
- tax losses
- accruals

Deferred tax liabilities (before offsetting)
- property, plant and equipment
- accruals

(124,386)
-

(149,254)
(51,485)

Offsetting

(124,386)
124,386

(200,739)
200,739

Deferred tax liabilities (after offsetting)

-

-

The amount of deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses (all of which have no expiry) for which no deferred tax
asset is recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
Group
2006
2005
RM
RM
Deductible temporary differences
Tax losses

Deferred tax assets not recognised

4,913,178
25,523,320

4,909,000
5,996,000

30,436,498

10,905,000

8,427,468

3,053,400

17 Inventories
Group

At cost:
Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

2006
RM

2005
RM

3,261,793
321,287
9,074,774

8,345,358
9,470,163
6,052,414

12,657,854

23,867,935
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18 Quoted investments
Group
2006
RM
At cost:
Quoted shares in Malaysia
Less: Allowance for diminution in value

Market value of quoted shares in Malaysia

2005
RM

455,466
(394,133)

455,466
(394,133)

61,333

61,333

128,173

109,564

19 Amounts due from subsidiaries
The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in Ringgit Malaysia. They represent unsecured advances with no fixed
terms of repayment and bear interest at rates ranging from 2% to 4% (2005: 2% to 4%) per annum.

20 Amounts due from associates
The amounts due from associates are denominated in Ringgit Malaysia and are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms
of repayment.
21 Receivables, deposits and prepayments
Group
2006
RM
Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Amounts due from customers on
construction contracts (Note 22)
Deposits
Prepayments
Other receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Company
2005
RM

70,251,488
(2,067,713)

-

-

97,958,926

68,183,775

-

-

3,551,884
283,206
636,438
22,933,750
(1,429,507)
21,504,243

3,354,257
1,137,326
299,082
9,406,428
(1,429,507)
7,976,921

5,000
30,694
30,694

6,550
119,725
119,725

80,951,361

35,694

126,275

The currency exposure profile of trade receivables is as follows:
Group
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2006
RM

2005
RM

36,894,698
23,659,914
4,354,903
30,142,239
1,838,249
1,737,948
260,970
1,506,460
172,581

28,172,669
24,085,267
2,078,138
11,257,849
635,509
3,803,524
195,068
23,464
-

100,567,962

70,251,488

Credit terms of trade receivables range from 30 to 90 days (2005: 30 to 90 days).
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2005
RM

100,567,962
(2,609,036)

123,934,697

Ringgit Malaysia
US Dollar
Singapore Dollar
Chinese Renminbi
Pound Sterling
Hong Kong Dollar
Euro
Brunei Dollar
Thai Baht
New Zealand Dollar

2006
RM
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22 Amounts due from customers on construction contracts
Group

Aggregate costs incurred to-date
Attributable profits less recognised losses

Less: Progress billings on contracts
Amounts due from customers on construction contracts
(include in receivables, deposits and prepayments) (Note 21)

2006
RM

2005
RM

3,551,884
-

3,354,257
-

3,551,884
-

3,354,257
-

3,551,884

3,354,257

23 Cash and cash equivalents
Group

Company

2006
RM

2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

Deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

14,390,673
47,163,279

4,823,358
22,627,754

9,379,808
15,741,521

3,586,299
1,526,561

Deposits, cash and bank balances
Less : Bank overdrafts (Note 27)

61,553,952
(5,179,297)

27,451,112
(2,830,653)

25,121,329
-

5,112,860
-

Less: Deposits pledged

56,374,655
(1,413,51
1)
(1,413,511)

24,620,459
(773,681)

25,121,329
(537,237)

5,112,860
(271,352)

54,961,144

23,846,778

24,584,092
4,584,092

4,841,508

The currency exposure profile of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:
Group
2006
RM
Ringgit Malaysia
US Dollar
Singapore Dollar
Chinese Renminbi
Hong Kong Dollar
Thai Baht
Euro

Company
2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

30,948,703
7,740,107
247,204
15,080,581
758,500
156,968
29,081

7,889,903
4,591,577
845,535
10,346,114
122,027
48,363
3,259

24,584,092
-

4,841,508
-

54,961,144

23,846,778

24,584,092

4,841,508

Bank balances are deposits held at call with a licensed bank and earn no interest.
Included in deposits, cash and bank balances of the Group and of the Company are deposits amounting to RM1,413,511 (2005:
RM773,681) and RM537,237 (2005: RM271,352) respectively which have been placed in licensed banks as security for
secured interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group and of the Company (Note 26 to the financial statements), and is not
available for use by the Group and the Company.
Fixed deposits with licensed banks have an average maturity period of 30 days (2005: 30 days).
Group and Company
2005
2006
RM
RM
Weighted average effective interest rates
Deposits with licensed banks
Interest rates during the financial year
Deposits with licensed banks

2.68

2.80

2.55-3.10

2.80
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24 Payables and accruals
Group

Trade payables
Other payables
Accruals
Deposits received
Hire-purchase and finance lease
payables (Note 28)

Company

2006
RM

2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

10,425,402
13,941,371
13,548,549
4,079,537

11,705,161
13,312,066
13,444,729
1,968,849

144,936
-

312,300
447,399
-

789,165

618,368

-

-

42,784,024

41,049,173

144,936

759,699

The currency exposure profile of trade payables is as follows:
Group

Ringgit Malaysia
US Dollar
Chinese Renminbi
Singapore Dollar
Euro
Thai Baht

Company

2006
RM

2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

7,706,418
77,400
1,086,817
11,027
34,842
1,508,898

9,099,891
1,329,941
1,113,482
161,847
-

144,936
-

759,699
-

10,425,402

11,705,161

144,936

759,699

Credit terms of trade payables is 60 days (2005: 60 days).
25 Amount due to a related company
The amount due to a related company is denominated in Ringgit Malaysia and is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms
of repayment.
26 Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Group
2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

110,042,240
28,519,073
116,336

45,600,646
18,834,642
-

40,000,000
-

40,000,000
-

138,677,649

64,435,288

40,000,000

40,000,000

39,052,390
2,449,406

24,739,160
10,026,873

-

-

41,501,796

34,766,033

-

-

180,179,445

99,201,321

40,000,000

40,000,000

(b)

8,986,827

21,604,435

-

-

(b)

149,094,630
37,505,900
2,565,742

70,339,806
40,439,077
10,026,873

40,000,000
-

40,000,000
-

189,166,272

120,805,756

40,000,000

40,000,000

Note
Current
Secured:
- Revolving credits
- Term loans
- Trust receipt

(a)
(b)
(c)

Unsecured:
- Revolving credits
- Bankers' acceptances

Non-current
Secured:
- Term loans
Tot
al
otal
- Revolving credits
- Term loans
- Trust receipt/Bankers' acceptances
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26 Interest-bearing bank borrowings (cont’d)
The currency exposure profile of bank borrowings is as follows:
Company

Group

Ringgit Malaysia
US Dollar
Chinese Renminbi

2006
RM

2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

103,250,347
48,728,431
37,187,494

60,492,010
27,296,392
33,017,354

40,000,000
-

40,000,000
-

189,166,272

120,805,756

40,000,000

40,000,000

(a) Revolving credits
The revolving credits of the Group are secured by way of:
(i)

A lien-holder's caveat over the freehold land of a subsidiary together with the building to be constructed thereon (Note
12 to the financial statements);

(ii) A fixed charge on a long term leasehold land and building of a subsidiary (Note 12 to the financial statements); and
(iii) The revolving credits of the Group is secured over 265,936,000 ordinary shares of an associate, of which 90,036,000
ordinary shares are secured over the Company’s revolving credits.
(b) Term loans
The repayment terms of the term loans are as follows:
Group

Current
Payable within 12 months
Non-current
Payable between 1 to 2 years
Payable between 2 to 5 years

2006
RM

2005
RM

28,519,073

18,834,642

8,986,827
8,986,827

10,467,751
11,136,684
21,604,435

37,505,900

40,439,077

The term loans of certain subsidiaries are secured by means of a fixed charge on a long term leasehold land and building and
plant and machinery of the subsidiaries (Note 12 to the financial statements).
(c) Trust receipt
The trust receipt of a subsidiary is secured by means of a fixed charge on a long term leasehold land and building and plant
and machinery of the subsidiary (Note 12 to the financial statements) and corporate guarantee by the company.
Group

Company

2006
%

2005
%

2006
%

2005
%

6.47

6.60

-

-

4.78
4.53

4.40
3.50

4.05

4.05

7.02

6.00

-

-

3.56

3.62

-

-

Weighted average effective
interest rates:
Term loans:
- secured
Revolving credits:
- unsecured
- secured
Trust receipt
- secured
Bankers’ acceptances
- unsecured
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26 Interest-bearing bank borrowings (cont’d)
Group

Company

2006
%

2005
%

2006
%

2005
%

5.95 - 6.91

5.70 - 6.91

-

-

4.38 - 6.00
2.89 - 5.77

3.40 - 4.40
3.50 - 5.30

4.04 - 4.05

4.03 - 4.06

6.85 - 7.10

6.00

-

-

2.95 - 4.05

3.97

-

-

Interest rates during the
financial year:
Term loans:
- secured
Revolving credits:
- unsecured
- secured
Trust receipt
- secured
Bankers’ acceptances
- unsecured

27 Bank overdrafts
The interest rates for the financial year ranged from 7.00% to 7.75% (2005: 6.80% to 7.20%) per annum for the Group. As at
31 January 2006, the effective interest rate applicable to bank overdrafts was 7.34% (2005: 6.80%) per annum.
All bank overdrafts are unsecured and denominated in Ringgit Malaysia.

28 Hire-purchase and finance lease payables
Group
2006
RM

2005
RM

861,549
285,456

686,720
827,949

Less: Future finance charges

1,147,005
(101,291)

1,514,669
(150,191)

Present value of liabilities

1,045,714

1,364,478

789,165
256,549

618,368
746,110

1,045,714

1,364,478

Hire-purchase and finance lease liabilities
Minimum payments:
- Not later than 1 year
- Later than 1 year not later than 5 years

Present value of liabilities:
- Not later than 1 year (Note 24)
- Later than 1 year not later than 5 years

Finance lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessors in the event of default.
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29 Share capital
Group and Company
2005
2006
RM
RM
Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each:
Authorised

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 February
Issuance of shares under the Employees’ Share Option Scheme (ESOS)

320,632,830
310,000

320,632,830
-

At 31 January

320,942,830

320,632,830

During the financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM320,632,830 to RM320,942,830
by way of issuance of 310,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each pursuant to the exercise of the Employees’ Share Option
Scheme (“ESOS”) at an exercise price of RM1.17 per share. The premium arising from the exercise of ESOS of RM52,700 has
been credited to the Share Premium account.
The new ordinary shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.
The Company’s Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) was approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 21 December 2001 and became effective on 20 May 2002, for a period of five years, in accordance with the
ESOS Bye-Laws.
The main features of the ESOS are as follows:
(i)

Eligible persons are employees and Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries who fall within the categories determined
by the Company and must have been confirmed and served for at least two years in the employment of Goldis Group or the
former Tan & Tan Group but subsequently employed by and on the payroll of any company comprised in the Goldis Group,
as the case may be, on or prior to the date of offer.

(ii) The total number of new shares to be offered under the ESOS shall not exceed 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital
of the Company at the time of the offer during the existence of the ESOS.
(iii) The subscription price for each new share may be set at a discount of not more than 10% from the five-day weighted
average price of the shares at the time the option is granted or any subscription price in accordance with any guidelines,
rules and regulations of the relevant authorities governing the ESOS at the time of the offer. Notwithstanding this, the
subscription price shall in no event be less than the nominal value of the shares.
(iv) No option shall be granted for less than 100 shares nor more than the maximum allowable allotment.
(v) The number of shares under option or the subscription price or both, so far as the options remain unexercised, shall be
adjusted following any variation in the issued share capital of the Company by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves,
rights issue, reduction, subdivision or consolidation of capital.
(vi) Options granted under the ESOS carry no dividend or voting rights. Upon exercise of the options, shares issued rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.
(vii) The persons to whom the options have been granted have no right to participate by virtue of the options in any share issue
of any other company within the Group.
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29 Share capital (cont’d)
At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 22 June 2005, the ESOS Bye-Laws were amended to approve the grant of options
to Non-Executive Directors. On that date, the Directors were authorised to offer and grant options to the following NonExecutive Directors:
Tan Kim Leong @ Tan Chong Min
Pauline Tan Suat Ming
Tan Boon Lee
Daud Mah bin Abdullah @ Mah Siew Whye
On 28 July 2005, the Company granted 2,710,000 new ESOS to Executive Director and eligible employees at an exercise price
of RM1.17 per share.
On 5 October 2005, the Company granted 1,000,000 new ESOS to Non-Executive Directors at an exercise price of RM1.15 per
share.
Set out below are details of options over ordinary shares of the Company granted under the ESOS:

Grant date

Expiry date

Exercise price
RM/share

29 September 2003
28 July 2005
5 October 2005

19 May 2007
19 May 2007
19 May 2007

1.00
1.17
1.15

Number of options over ordinary shares
At
At
1.2.2005
Granted
Exercised
31.1.2006
500,000
-

2,710,000
1,000,000

(310,000)
-

500,000
2,400,000
1,000,000

500,000

3,710,000

(310,000)

3,900,000

2006

2005

732,000

200,000

Number of share options vested at balance sheet date
Details relating to options exercised during the financial year are as follows:

Exercise date

8 November 2005

Quoted price
of shares
at share
issue date
RM/share

Exercise price
RM/share

Number of
shares issued
2006

1.20

1.17

310,000
2006
RM

Ordinary share capital at par
Share premium

310,000
52,700

Proceeds received on exercise of share options

362,700

Fair value at exercise date of shares issued

372,00
372,000

30 Share premium
Group and Company
2005
2006
RM
RM

70

At 1 January
Arising from exercise of ESOS (Note 29)

385,316,192
52,700

385,316,192
-

At 31 December

385,368,892

385,316,192
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31 Retained earnings and proposed dividend reserve
The Company has sufficient tax exempt income and tax credit under Section 108 of the Income Tax Act, 1967 to frank the
payment of net dividends of approximately RM29,200,000 (2005: RM12,700,000) out of its retained earnings as at 31 January
2006. The extent of the retained earnings not covered at that date amounted to RM131,600,00 (2005 : RM121,300,000).

32 Capital commitments
Capital commitments, approved and contracted for:
Group

- purchase of land
- renovation

2006
RM

2005
RM

14,400,000
-

15,990,000
597,877

14,400,000

16,587,877

33 Contingent liabilities
Company

Guarantees issued to banks for banking facilities extended to subsidiaries

2006
RM

2005
RM

184,000,000

93,600,000

34 Significant related party disclosures
In addition to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements, set out below are other significant
related party transactions and balances. The related party transactions described below were carried out on terms and
conditions attainable in transactions with unrelated parties.
Related party

Relationship

IGB Corporation Berhad

Associate

The significant related party transactions during the financial year are as follows:
Group
Related parties (subsidiaries of IGB Corporation Berhad)
Rental of premises:
- Mid Valley City Management Services Sdn Bhd
- IGB Properties Sdn Bhd
- Tan & Tan Realty Sdn Bhd
Sale of property, plant and equipment:
- Mid Valley City Sdn Bhd
Sales of services:
- Mid Valley City Sdn Bhd
- TTD Sdn Bhd

2006
RM

2005
RM

305,563
372,930
395,544

1,341,864
348,730
342,788

1,200,000

-

111,183

131,000
-

As at 31 January 2006, there are no individual significant outstanding balances arising from the above related party transactions
(other than normal trade transactions) during the financial year.
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35 Significant non-cash transactions
The significant non-cash transactions during the financial year are as follows:
Company

Group

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment by means of hirepurchase and finance lease
Purchase consideration of investment in
a subsidiary set off against amount due
from a jointly-controlled entity

2006
RM

2005
RM

2006
RM

2005
RM

298,939

1,166,079

-

-

-

1,000,000

-

1,000,000

36 Fair value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes
The fair value of a financial instrument is assumed to be the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged or settled
between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm's length transaction.
Quoted market prices, when available, are used as a measure of fair values. However, for a significant portion of the Group's
financial instruments, quoted market prices do not exist. For such financial instruments, fair values presented are estimates
derived using the net present value or other valuation techniques. These techniques involve uncertainties and are significantly
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made regarding risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these
estimates and the resulting fair values.
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group at the balance sheet date approximated their fair
values except as set out below:
2006
2005
Carrying
Fair
Carrying
Fair
amount
value
amount
value
Note
RM
RM
RM
RM
Financial assets
Quoted investments
Unquoted investments

18

61,333
1,908,083

128,173
*

61,333
1,904,663

109,564
*

Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings:
- Term loans (Non-current)

26

8,986,827

9,063,662

21,604,435

22,752,420

Hire-purchase and finance
lease payables

28

1,045,714

1,044,775

1,364,478

1,336,692

*

It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of the Group's unquoted investments because of the lack of reference market
prices and the inability to estimate fair value without incurring excessive costs. However, the carrying amounts recorded
are not anticipated to differ significantly from their fair values at the balance sheet date.

37 Significant events during the financial year
On 7 April 2006, the Company had disposed 9,318,345 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in KrisAssets Holdings Berhad (“Kris”),
a subsidiary of the Company’s associate, IGB Corporation Berhad, for a cash consideration of RM25,159,532. Pursuant to the
disposal, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary’s total equity interest in Kris had reduced from 21,113,184 ordinary
shares of RM1.00 each to 11,794,839 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each, representing 3.57% of the issued and paid-up share
capital of Kris.
38 Approval of financial statements
The financial statements have been approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 8 May 2006.
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BY
DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965
We, Tan Lei Cheng and Tan Boon Lee, two of the Directors of Goldis Berhad (formerly known as Gold IS Berhad), state that, in the
opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 32 to 72 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 January 2006 and of the results and cash flows of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended on that date in accordance with the MASB approved accounting standards in Malaysia and the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1965.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 8 May 2006.

Tan Lei Cheng
Director

Tan Boon Lee
Director

Statutory

DECLARATION
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965
I, Leong Kok Chi, the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Goldis Berhad (formerly known as Gold IS Berhad),
do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 32 to 72 are, in my opinion, correct and I make this
solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act,
1960.

Leong Kok Chi

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Leong Kok Chi, at Kuala Lumpur, on 8 May 2006, before me.

S. Masohood Omar
Commissioner for Oaths
Kuala Lumpur
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Report of the

AUDITORS
to the members of Goldis Berhad
We have audited the financial statements set out on pages 32 to 72. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's Directors. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on these financial statements and
to report our opinion to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved auditing standards in Malaysia. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion:
(a) the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and MASB
approved accounting standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of :
(i)

the matters required by Section 169 of the Companies Act, 1965 to be dealt with in the financial statements; and

(ii) the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 January 2006 and of the results and cash flows of the Group
and of the Company for the financial year ended on that date;
and
(b) the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by the subsidiaries of
which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
The names of the subsidiaries of which we have not acted as auditors are indicated in Note 13 to the financial statements. We have
considered the financial statements of these subsidiaries and the auditors' reports thereon.
We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company's financial statements
are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and we
have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.
The auditors' reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification and did not include any
comment made under subsection (3) of Section 174 of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
(AF: 1146)
Chartered Accountants
Kuala Lumpur
8 May 2006
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Shirley Goh
(1778/08/06(J))
Partner of the firm

List of

PROPERTIES
as at 31 January 2006
Location

Tenure

Land
Area

Description

Age of
Building
Years

Net Book
Value
RM'000

%
Owned
By the
Group

Date of
acquisition

N/A

40,932

100

31/1/2002

5

16,942

78.15

31/1/2002

12

7,734

72.00

31/1/2002

Properties held by
the company and
its subsidiaries

Commercial Properties
199 Jalan Tun Razak
Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Freehold

1.95
acres

Approved
commercial land for
development of a 40
storey office building

Lot 10, Jalan Sultan Mohd 6
Bandar Sultan Suleiman
42000 Port Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Malaysia

99 years
2.40
commencing
acres
30 March 1994

2 storey building
comprising office
laboratory and
factory

Lot W-31-02,
Yang-Wang-Kong Road North
Shi-Ge-Zhuang Town
Wuqing District
Tianjin
People's Republic of China

50 years
commencing
22 July 1994

16.47
acres

3 single storey office
building, 3 factories
and a single storey
ancilliary building

Unit 4-05, Level 13
Lanes 1 to 4
Xinzhong Street
Gong Ti Bei Lu
Dong Cheng District
Beijing 100027
People's Republic of China

70 years
commencing
28 April 2001

0.063
acres /
256.09
m2

Service Apartment unit

3

1,563

90

27/1/2004

Unit 4-05, Level 6
Lanes 1 to 4
Xinzhong Street
Gong Ti Bei Lu
Dong Cheng District
Beijing 100027
People's Republic of China

70 years
commencing
28 April 2001

0.063
acres /
256.09
m2

Service Apartment unit

3

1,522

90

27/1/2004

Unit 4-06, Level 6
Lanes 1 to 4
Xinzhong Street
Gong Ti Bei Lu
Dong Cheng District
Beijing 100027
People's Republic of China

70 years
commencing
28 April 2001

0.059
acres /
240.55
m2

Service Apartment unit

3

1,419

90

27/1/2004

Residential Properties

N/A: not applicable
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SHAREHOLDINGS
as at 26 April 2006
SHARE CAPIT
AL
CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capital
Issued and Paid-up Share Capital
Type of shares

:
:
:

RM1,000,000,000
RM320,942,830
Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Range of Shareholdings

No. of Shareholders

%

No. of Shares

%

Less than 100
100 to 1,000
1,001 to 10,000
10,001 to 100,000
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares

13
2,144
2,610
318
81
4

0.25
41.47
50.48
6.15
1.57
0.08

438
2,118,806
9,963,063
9,047,974
183,279,985
116,532,564

0.00
0.66
3.10
2.82
57.11
36.31

Total

5,170

100.00

320,942,830

100.00
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No.

Name

Shares Held

%

1

Permodalan Nasional Berhad

41,929,000

13.06

2

Wah Seong (Malaya) Trading Co. Sdn Bhd

32,989,356

10.28

3

Tan Kim Yeow Sendirian Berhad

24,414,208

7.61

4

Tan Chin Nam Sendirian Berhad

17,200,000

5.36

5

Tan Chin Nam Sendirian Berhad

13,213,200

4.12

6

HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
HPBS SG for Kenderlay Ltd

12,524,000

3.90

7

MIDF SISMA Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Far East Equity Ltd

10,361,000

3.23

8

MIDF SISMA Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Scorpio Ventures Ltd

9,770,000

3.04

9

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Tan Chin Nam Sendirian Berhad

8,200,000

2.55

10

RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Tan Chin Nam Sdn Bhd

8,000,000

2.49

11

Mayban Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
DBS Bank for Ripley Services Limited

7,253,200

2.26

12

Wah Seong (Malaya) Trading Co. Sdn Bhd

6,935,000

2.16

13

Ke-Zan Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd for Tan Kim Yeow Sendirian Berhad

6,178,200

1.93

14

Employees Provident Fund Board

5,649,000

1.76

15

Wah Seong Enterprises Sdn Bhd

5,647,071

1.76
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THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
No.

Name

Shares Held

%

16

BBL Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Dato’ Tan Chin Nam

5,470,377

1.70

17

Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Public Small Cap Fund

5,437,400

1.69

18

HK 28 Limited

5,177,510

1.61

19

HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt an for Credit Suisse (SG BR-TST-Asing)

5,016,800

1.56

20

Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Tan Chin Nam Sdn Bhd

5,000,000

1.56

21

Mayban Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
DBS Bank for Timbarra Services Limited

4,959,900

1.55

22

Dato’ Tan Chin Nam

4,222,000

1.32

23

Lembaga Tabung Angkatan Tentera

3,192,000

0.99

24

Scanstell Sdn Bhd

3,078,000

0.96

25

Tan Chin Nam Sendirian Berhad

2,967,939

0.92

26

Dato’ Tan Chin Nam

2,818,800

0.88

27

Classlant Sdn Bhd

2,487,000

0.77

28

Tentang Emas Sdn Bhd

2,447,000

0.76

29

BBL Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Tan Chin Nam Sdn Bhd

2,300,000

0.72

30

Tan Lei Cheng

2,245,907

0.70

77

Annual Report 2006

Goldis Berhad (515802-U)

Analysis of

SHAREHOLDINGS (cont’d)

as at 26 April 2006

SUBST
ANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
SUBSTANTIAL
(excluding bare trustees)

Direct
Permodalan Nasional Berhad
Dato’ Tan Chin Nam
Tan Chin Nam Sdn Bhd
Tan Kim Yeow Sdn Bhd
Wah Seong (M) Trading Co S/B
Robert Tan Chung Meng
Tony Tan Choon Keat
Pauline Tan Suat Ming
Yayasan Pelaburan Bumiputra

41,929,000
12,511,177
57,114,139
32,146,408
45,099,156
745,787
120,833
-

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD
%
Indirect
13.06
3.90
17.80
10.02
14.05
0.23
0.04
-

%

117,708,466
60,594,327
57,516,327
12,417,171
89,662,735
89,662,735
89,662,735
41,929,000

36.68
18.88
17.92
3.87
27.94
27.94
27.94
13.06

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD
%
Indirect

%

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

Direct
Tan Lei Cheng
Tan Boon Lee
Pauline Tan Suat Ming
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2,245,907
2,036,657
120,833

0.70
0.63
0.04

89,662,735

27.94

GOLDIS BERHAD
(formerly known as Gold IS Berhad)
(515802-U)

PROXY FORM

No. of ordinary shares held

I/We
of
being a member(s) of Goldis Berhad, hereby appoint
of

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Sixth Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Seri Angsana, 2nd Floor, Sidewalk Cafe, MiCasa All Suite Hotel,
368B, Jalan 1/68F, Off Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur on Thursday, 29 June 2006 at 2.00 p.m. and at any
adjournment thereof.
My/our proxy is to vote as indicated below:
Resolution

For

Ordinary Resolution 1

Adoption of Financial Statements and Reports

Ordinary Resolution 2

Payment of Directors’ fees

Ordinary Resolution 3

Declaration of First & Final Dividend

Ordinary Resolution 4

Re-election of Mr Tan Kim Leong

Ordinary Resolution 5

Re-election of Encik Daud Mah Bin Abdullah

Ordinary Resolution 6

Re-appointment of Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers

Ordinary Resolution 7

Authorization for Directors to issue shares

Ordinary Resolution 8

Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to
Purchase its Own Shares

Special Resolution 1

Proposed Amendment to the Articles of Association

Special Resolution 2

Proposed Amendment to the Object Clause of the
Memorandum of Association

Signature/Common Seal of Shareholder

Against

Date :

Notes:
1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy, who need not be a member, to vote in
his stead and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

2.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly
authorized in writing or if the appointer is a corporation, either under its common seal or under the hand of a
duly authorised officer or attorney.

3.

The Proxy Form shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, Penthouse, Menara Tan & Tan,
207 Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for
holding the meeting.
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2nd fold here

AFFIX STAMP

The Company Secretary
Goldis Berhad (formerly known as Gold IS Berhad)
Penthouse, Menara Tan & Tan
207 Jalan Tun Razak,
50400 Kuala Lumpur

1st fold here
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